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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

ERNEST J OLNESS, CPA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Park County, Montana (the government) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the government's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of cohtents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance With accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally -accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opi11io11 on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accouhting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the government, 
as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements. the government adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 88, Certain 
Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued) 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, 
budgetary comparison information, pension plan information and the schedule of changes in the total other post-employment benefits 
(OPEB) liability and related ratios identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers {t to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of mana9ement about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financlal statements that collectively comprise the government's 
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation lo the basic financial statements as a 
whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 13, 2019, on our consideration of 
the government's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over fjnancial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the government's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

O/m1; Assii'1ti/et
1 
Pt_ 

Billin9s, Montana 
December 13, 2019 
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PARK COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Park County's management offers readers of the county's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of its financial 
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here. in conjunction 
with the basic financial statements. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLJGHTS 

• Net position for Park County Was $31,931,110.

• The County's total net position increased 9.2% as a result of this year's operations. Net position of governmental activities increased
by $2,812,109 or 10.0%, while net position of business-type activities decreased by $134,961 or 13.2%.

• During the year governmental revenues of $15,404,753 were $2,760,251 more than the $12,644,502 in expenses, before transfers
out. The total cost of governmental activities (expenses) decreased over the prior year by $225,481 or 1.8%.

• In the business-type activities before transfers in and out, revenues increased $70,755 (5.8%) and expenses increased $77,628
(6.0%).

• The General Fund balance reported a decrease this year of $40,133, or 4. 78%.

USING THIS AUDIT REPORT 

This audit report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements provide information about the 
activities of the government as a whole and present a longer-term view of the county's finances. For governmental activities, fund 
statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial 
statements also report the government's operations in more detail than the all-inclusive, government-wide statements by providing 
information about the most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the 
government acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of county government. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to Park County's basic financial statements. The 
county basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2} fund financial statements, 
and 3} the notes to financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to 
support the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad 
overview of Park County's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (pages 10 and 11) report information about the government as a whole. 
These statements include all assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows using the accrual basis of accounting, 
which is similar to the accounting used by most private sector companies. All of the current year's revenue and expenses are taken 
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements also report the net position and changes in them. Over time, increases or decreases in the county's net position 
are one indicator of its financial condition. The reader will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in the property 
tax base and the condition of our capital assets, to assess overall health, 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, Park County's finances are divided into two categories: 

Governmental activities: Basic services are reported here, including general government, public safety, public works, public health. 
social and economic services, conservation of natural resources, and culture and recreation. Property taxes and state and federal 
grants finance most of these activities. 

Business-type activities: The County charges fees to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain services it provides. 
Solid waste servic�s are reported here. 

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Park County, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements, and to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. 
All of the county's funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds: Basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into ahd out of those 
funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called 
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The 
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the general government operations and the basic services it 
provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can 
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PAR K COUNTY 
MANAGEM ENT'S D I SCUSS ION & ANALYSIS 

be spent in the near future to  finc1nce progrc1ms. The relat ionship (or  differences) between governmental activ ities (reported in the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds are described In reconcil iations (pages 1 3 and 
1 5). 

Propn'etary Funds: The County charges fees to customers for the services it provides - whether to outside customers or to other 
units of the government - and these services are general ly reported in proprietary funds. P roprietary funds are reported in the same 
way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities .  In fact, the enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type act ivities reported in the government-wide statements , but 
provide more detail and additional i nformation , such as cash flows, for propr ietary funds. The county has two enterprise funds, 
Landfill and Refuse, which deal with solid waste. Internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) report activ ities 
that provide supplies and services to other departments of the government. The county has no internal service funds . 

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary 
funds use the accrual basis of accounting . Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements because 
these assets are not available to finance Park County operat ions. The county is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in 
these funds are used for their intended pu rposes. 

THE GOVERNMENT AS A WHOLE 

Net position: Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position .  The following schedules 
provide summaries of changes in net position of the county's governmental and business-type activ ities , 

Current and other assets 
capital assets 

Total as sets 

Deferred outflow s-pens'Ton plans 

Other liabilities 
Long-term liabi jities outstanding 

Total liabilities 

Deferred inflow s-pension plans 

Net position :  
Net investrrent in  capita l asseti 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Governrrental Activities 
201 9 201 8 

$1 3,757,861 
24,1 83,306 

37,941 , 1 67 

1 ,647,941 

54,299 
6,707 , 191 

6 ,761 ,490 

1 ,780,832 

23,304 ,342 
12,466 ,523 
(4,724,079) 

$31 .046,786 

$1 3,576,038 
21 ,8 1 5 , 1 1 3 

35,391 , 1 51 

1 ,954,875 

36,020 

7,435,493 

7,471 ,51 3 

1 ,639,836 

20,8 1 8 , 903 
1 1 .850,677 
(4,434,903) 

$28,234,677 

Bus iness-type Activ ities 
201 9  

$2,076, 1 81 
599, 766 

2,675,947 

66,039 

1 ,806,874 

1 ,806,874 

50,788 

599,766 
92,561 

1 91 ,997 

$ 884,324 

201 8  

$2 , 1 56,51 1 
67 1 , 37 1 

2 , 827,882 

70,387 

1 , 872,814 

1 , 872,8 14  

6, 1 70 

671 ,371 
1 08,200 
239,7 14  

$1 ,01 9,285 

Total 
201 9 

$15 ,834,042 
24 , 783,072 

40,61 7, 1 1 4  

1 ,71 3,980 

54,299 
8 ,51 4,065 

8, 568,364 

1 ,831 ,620 

23,904, 1 08 
1 2 ,559,084 
(4,532,082) 

$3 1 ,931 , 1 1 0  

201 8  

$ 1 5,732, 549 
22,486,484 

38,2 19,033 

2 ,025,262 

36,020 
9,308,307 

9,344,327 

1 ,646.006 

21 ,490,274 
1 1 ,958,877 
(4 , 1 95,1 89) 

$29,253,962 

A large portion of the County's net position reflects its investment in capital assets ( land ,  bui ldings, machi nery, equipment, and 
infrastructure) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is sti l l  outstanding. We use these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens ; consequently ,  these assets are not avai lable for future spending . Although the county's investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other 
sources. since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to l iquidate these l iabil i t ies. 

Restricted net position in  the governmental and business-type activities , $ 1 2 ,466 ,523, represent resources that are subject lo external 
restrictions on how they may be used .  

At  the end of  the fiscal year, the County is able to report positive balances in a l l  reported categories of net posit ion , both for the 
government as a whole as wel l as for its business-type activ i ties . Net posit ion was $3 1 ,046 ,786 for the governmental activities and 
$884,324 for the business-type activities, or a total of $3 1 ,931 ,1 1 0 .  

The County's overall net position increased 9.2% or $2,677, 1 48 from fiscal year 201 8 to 201 9. There was a 1 0.0% increase i n  net 
position in the governmental activl t ies of $2,8 1 2 , 1 09, most ly due to capital asset increases, and the business-type activities saw a 
1 3.2% decrease. or $ 1 34 , 96 1 , again related to capital asset changes. 
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PARK COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

CHANGES JN NET POSITION 
Govemrrental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges. for -services $ 968,034 $ 903,888 $ 1,271,721 $ 1,200,117 $ 2,239,755 $ 2,104,005 
Operating grants and contributlons 1,805,098 1,693,861 5,632 4,427 1,810,730 1,698,288 
Cclpital grants and conlributions 2,769,837 134,778 2,769,837 134,778 

Genera! revenues'. 
Taxes 6,968,383 6,719,934 6,968,383 6,719,934 
Licenses and perrrits 56,974 48,861 56,974 48,861 
lntergovemrrental 2,397,667 2,529,977 2,397,667 2,529,977 
Interest 257,924 177,799 16,393 19,488 274,317 197,287 
Mscellaneous 128,880 168,218 45 34 128,925 168,252 
Gain on disposal of cap�al assets 51,956 1,927 1,030 52,986 1,927 

Total revenues 15,404.753 12,379,2.43 1,294,821 1.224,066 16,699,574 13,603,309 

Expenses: 
General govermrent 3,507,722 3,554,377 3,507,722 3,554,377 
F\Jblic safety 3,479,334 3,560,950 3,479,334 '3,560,950 
F\JbfJC w orks 2,745,989 2,963,772 2,745,989 2,963,772 
F\Jblic health 649,252 668,008 649,252 668,008 
Social and econonic services 440,462 437,752 440,462 437,752 
CUiture and recreation 1,128,246 1,054,524 1,128,2A6 1,054,524 
I-busing and corrm.mity development 138,954 138,954 138,954 138,954 
Other Current 0,arges 404,665 373,597 404,665 373,597 
Landfm 30,209 54,345 30,209 54,345 
Incinerator/transfer station 1.347,715 1,245,951 1,347,715 1,245,951 
Collections 
Interest on long-term debt 32,064 25;655 32,064 25,.656 
Intergovernmental 117,814 92,388 117,614 92,388 

Total expenses 12,644,502 12,869,977 1,377,924 1,300,296 14,022,426 14,170,273 

Olange in net position before lransfe 2,760,251 (490,734) (83,103) (76,230) 2,677,148 (566,964) 
Trar,sfers 51,858 125,028 (51,858) (125,028} 

Oiange in net pos ltlon 2,812,109 (365,706) (134,961) (201,258) 2,677,148 (566,964) 
Net position, beginning 28,234,677 26,808,529 1,019,285 1,084,401 29,253,962 27,892,930 

A-for period adjustment 1,791,B54 136,142 1,927,996 

Net position, ending $31,046,786 $28,234,677 $ 884,324 $ 1,019,285 $31,931,110 $29,253,962 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the major (most significant) funds. To be reported as a major fund, 
a fund must meet each of the two following criteria. Governments may choose to report other governmental and enterprise funds as 
major funds, even though they do not meet this tesL The General Fund is always reported as a major fund. 

Total assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that 
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding element total for all funds ofttiat category 
or type (that is, total governmental or total enterprise funds). 

The same element that met the 10 percent criterion is at Jeast 5 percent of the corresponding element total for all governmental 
and enterprise funds combined. 

Governmental Funds 

Park County has six governmental funds that are reported as major funds in fiscal year 2019. These are: General, Road, Public Safety 
(Law Enforcement), Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT), Road Capital Improvement, and the General Capital Improvement funds. 

• General Fund: This is the primary operating fund for Park County and •includes the Commissioners, Just1ce of the Peace,
Clerk and Recorder, Elections Administration, Auditor, Treasurer, County Atto(ney, Building Maintenance, Public
Administrator, School Superintendent, Mail/copier Services, Juvenile Detention, Coroner, Sanitarian, Health Department,
Extension, Public Works, Veteran Services, Mental Health Services, County Parks, Historical Research, Accounting, Grant
Administration, Human Resources, Information Technology, and Geographic Information Systems.
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PARK COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Besides taxes and charges for services, General fund revenue sources include a Local Option Tax, which amounted to 
$856,529 in fiscal year 2019, an increase of 3.8% over fiscal year 2018. Before transfers in and transfers out. revenues 
increased 2.5% by $82,201 and expenditures increased 1.9% by $70,115 over the prior fiscal year. Transfers in from 
Permissive Medical Levy, Road, PILT, Records Preservation and the Enterprise funds amountect to $469,327, a decrease of 
$99,731 from 2018. 

• Road Fund: This fund accounts for costs related to maintenance and reconstruction of county roads. Revenues before other
financing in 2019 increased by $120,089, or 11.2%. FEMA funding of $116,032 for 2019 flooding contributed most of the
funding increase. A 2.0% increase in tax revenues and a 1.6% increase in state entitlement payments also added to the
increase in funding.

Transfers included $400,000 from PILT, $64,703 from the Permissive Medical Levy fund, an increase of 3.6%, and $56,133 
from the Emergency Disaster fund to cover spring flooding costs. Expenditures decreased $27,900 or -2.0% over the prior 
year. Expenditures include $31,116 transferred to the General fund for Road share of the Public Works Director. Transfers 
out also include $68,150 to cover capital purchases in the Road & Bridge Capital Improvement Funds and $49,492 for 2018 
spring flooding. The Road fund has a positive fund balance of $215,682 in 2019 primarily from FEMA commitments for 2019 
spring flooding. In 2018, the Road fund balance was $21,661. 

• Public Safety: The Public Safety fund accounts for activities for Law Enforcement: Sheriffs Office, detention center, civil clerk,
concealed weapons licensing, and the community service program. Revenues for fiscal year 2019 before transfers in
increased $55,066, or 3.3% over the prior year. Tax revenues were up $35,596 from 2018, or 2.6%. Transfers in from other
funds decreased $106,802 or 12.6%. The largest share of transfers in, $449,200, was from PIL T. The 18.2% decrease in the
transfer from PIL T was made to help balance PIL T and maintain the Sheriffs Office fund balance.

Public Safety's expenses increased by 2.6% or $59,823. With the increase in revenues and decrease In transfers in, the 
ending fund balance increased $194,662 or 26.8%. Multiple scheduled vehicle purchases for 2019 were deferred to 2020 
resulting in a larger than expected fund balance heading into 2020. Vacancy savings contributed to the fund balance increase 
as well. 

• Payment in Ueu of Taxes (PIL T); PILT funds are received annually from the federal government in Heu of taxes on federal
property within the county, The majority of appropriations from PILT are transfers out to other funds in order to finance their
operations, such as Law Enforcement, General, Road, Planning and Fair funds. PIL T is also used to pay for operating costs
of certain Public Safety services, litigation expenses, motor pool maintenance, Commissioners' special projects, and support
of the city/county dispatch.

In fiscal year 2019, the amount that the counw received for PILT was $1,469,004, a $175,432 or 10.7% decrease from the 
prior fiscal year. The amount transferred to other funds was $975,309, a 16.4% decrease. The decrease came from reduced 
funding for the Sheriffs Office and reduced expenditures for external funding requests from community organizations. 
Dispatch expenditures, which are shared with the City of Livingston, were higher than budgeted at year end which reduced 
how much the government was expecting to save in 2019. The net change in fund balance from the prior fiscal year was an 
increase of $91,116, for an ending fund balance of $951,129. 

• Road GIP Fund: In 2019, a fund that appeared in 2017 reappeared as a major fund due to 2018 spring floods and the
emergency replacement of the Convict Grade Bridge. The fund received a $30,000 TSEP Grant for the replacement Convict
Grade Bridge which cost around $500,000. FEMA awarded $8'3,532 for 2018 flooding damage, of which around $70,000 was
transferred to this fund. The new gas tax instituted in 2017, called Gas Tax - Special Road/Street Allocation Program,
contributed $126,188 for the capital projects. A 2020 loan for $560,000 was approved from lntercap at the MT Board of
Investments to cover the balance of the Convict Grade Bridge and 2018 flooding expenditures not covered by the FEMA grant
and other sources of revenues. There are two additional Treasure State Endowment Program (TSEP) grants for 1. replacing
the Mission Creek Bridge and 2. providing a preliminary engineering report for three bridges in the Cooke City area.

• General Capital Improvement Fund: This fund represents the amount awarded to the county from a 1999 law suit settlement
plus interest. Use of this fund is restricted by resolutions passed by the County Commissioners. Revenues consists of
interest. Besides investment interest, annual payments are received for loans made from the fund. In fiscal year 2010 the
fund loaned $650,000 to the Road fund for road graders which was paid off in 2019, and in 2015 it loaned $53,441 to the
Cooke City Fire District for equipment purchases. In 2018, a new loan was entered into with the Cooke City Water District for
$20,000 for a hydraulic analysis. In 2019, a $25,000 loan was entered into the with Angel Line transportation fund to help
purchase a vehicle.

Whereas earlier resolutions by the Board of County Commissioners restricted expenditures for only specific purposes, 
Resolution No. 1145, signed in November 2012, allowed interest from the BN fund to be expended on capital improvement 
projects. In fiscal year 2019, $80,151 was expended for a loan payment for a new building for Search and Rescue and two 
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PARK COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

capital improvement projects including Tom Miner and Shields River Road Federal Lands Access Project grant matches. The 
ending fund balance was $8,608,370, a decrease of $17,298 over the prior year. 

Enterprise Funds 
The county's waste disposal sys has been in transition since 2012. The Park County Transfer Station no longer accepts refuse or 
recycling; all refuse activities have moved to the city of Livingston Transfer Station. In the fall of 2016, the Park County landfill was 
closed. All landfill Jobs have been eliminated. The net position decrease for the refuse facility of $121,222 came from a $30,000 
reduction in its cash position. The balance included capital asset and depreciation adjustments and noncash changes to pension plan 
information. 

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
Original budget compared to final budget expenditures 
FEMA awarded funds to Park County for 2018 and 2019 flooding which passed through the Emergency Disaster Fund to cover Public 
Works costs for 2018 spring flooding, and the budget increased $105,000. The Road and Bridge Capital Improvement fund increased 
its budget by $275,100 to cover the emergency replacement of the Convict Grade Brid9e. The Homeland Security Fund was awarded 
a grant for portable repeaters and a tower repeater which increased the budget appropriations by $54,100. There were other 
adjustments for increased costs due to weather, operating costs and additional revenues received and distributed. 

Final budget compared to actual results. Other financing sources and uses include transfers in from and out to other funds. Actual 
revenues for the General Fund before other financing sources were 3.5% over budget. Other financing sources were within 1 % of the 
final budget. Total actual revenues including transfers in were $113,502, 3.15% over budget. Actual General fund tax revenues were 
$631 over bud9et; local option taxes, which are collected in the General fund, were 3.8% more than budgeted. Investment earnings 
went up in 2019. 

General Fund actual expenditures were 99.64% of budgeted appropriations. The mental treatment, parks and veteran burial 
expenditures were significantly higher than anticipated. Transfers were made to cover expenditures not covered by the MLIA grant for 
GIS services in mapping the county. Those and some smaller overages were offset by other departments spending under their 
appropriations. The net change in the General Fund balance was a decrease of $40,133 due to increased expenditures. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
Capital Assets: Park County's net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2019 totaled $23,904,108. This investment includes 
land, construction in progress, buildings, infrastructure, machinery, and equipment. See the notes to financial statements for changes 
in capital assets. 

long Tenn Debt: Debt Service Funds are used to account for the payment of interest and principal on long term bonded debt other 
than revenue bonds. Montana statutes specify that a single debt service fund be established for each general obligation bond, special 
assessment bond, judgment levy, and S.I.D. revolving. 

State statute limits the amount of county indebtedness to 2.5 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property. The 2019 market 
value of property in the County was $2,794,267,435, and the statutory limit of county indebtedness was $69,856,686. As of June 30, 
2019, Park County had at total of $878,964 in outstanding notes, of which $760,187 is long term. Par1< County's total debt decreased 
$117,246 during the fiscal year. There were some reductions by regularly scheduled principal payments on existing debt. 

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS 
The 2018 recertified taxable value of property in Park County, less the value of the Tax Increment Financing Districts, was used during 
fiscal year 2019 financial period of tax collections. The rate increased 1.6% from $44,447,625 in fiscal year 2018 to $45,162,088 in 
fiscal year 2019. The value of newly taxable property county-wide was $1,493,225, which accounts for a portion of that increase. It 
should also be noted that 2019 was a reassessment year for the Montana Department of Revenue, who is required by state law to 
conduct periodic reappraisals of property in the interest of equal taxation. The next reassessment will occur in 2021. 

A Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) is a vehicle by which a targeted economic development district can set aside incremental 
increases in tax revenues above a base year for specific uses, generally allied to Infrastructure. These Increases in tax revenue are not 
available to other affected taxing bodies. There are 2 TIF's in Park County, both of which are within the City of Livingston. The 
downtown TIF expires in 2034, and the west end TIF expires in 2025 when the related infrastructure bonds are paid. 

County general mills are split among the General, Brid9e. Weed Control, Fair, Airport, District Court, Comprehensive Insurance, Senior 
Citizens, Law Enforcement, and Museum Funds at the commissioners' discretion, with certain restrictions. The growth In number of 
authorized mills for these aggregate mills went from 83.69 in fiscal year 2018 to 85.17 in fiscal year 2019. Calculations were done 
according to Montana Code Annotated, Title 15, Section 10. Part 420, which limits the growth in mills to one half the average of inflation 
over the prior 3 years and new construction. The commissioners levied the full amount authorized in fiscal year 2019. 

Wlth the increase in value of a county mill and the decrease in number of mills authorized to be levied, tax revenues for the county 
general mills were expected to increase 4.3%, from $3,689,014 in fiscal year 2018 ,to $3,846,278 that was budgeted in fiscal year 2019. 
The actual property tax revenue received was $3,839,085. or 99.8% of budget. 
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PARK COUNTY 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PIL T) funds are received annually from the federal government in lieu of taxes on federal property within the 
county and continue to be a major source of operating funds. The majority of appropriations from PIL T are transfers out to other funds 
in order to finance their operations, such as Law Enforcement, General, Road, Planning, and Fair funds. PIL T is also used to pay for 
operating costs of motor pool maintenance, litigation expenses, commissioners' special projects, and certain Public Safety services 
such as support of the city/county dispatch. In fiscal year 2019 the county received $1,469,004 for the 2019 PILT from the federal 
government, or a 10.7% decrease. Expenditures in 2019 were $1,394,600 or 11.6% less than the prior year. The net change in fund 
balance from the prior fiscal year was an increase of $91,116, for an ending fund balance of $951,129. The county is continuing the 
process of evaluating the demands on the PIL T fund and reducing the demands on the PILT reserve. 

The county's waste disposal system has been in transition since 2012. The Park County Transfer Station no longer accepts refuse or 
recycling; all refuse activities have moved to the city of Livingston Transfer Station. In the fall of 2015, the Park County Solid Waste 
Board recommended and the Commissioners moved to close the landfill, pending DEQ approval. All landfill jobs have been 
eliminated. The landfill closure project was completed in 2016, and funds held in trust to cover the costs were released to the county 
to cover expenditures in 2018 and 2019. 

In light of the most recent Consumer Price Index statistics indicating a Cost of Living Adjustment of 2.01% and in an effort to equalize 
pay increases, the county's Compensation Board recommended that elected officials receive a $0.45 per hour increase to their base 
salary. Wages for eligible county employees were also adjusted at the same rate. 

Grants financed a number of projects during the year, including some capital projects which will continue into subsequent fiscal years. 
Recurring grants are discussed as well. 

• Another FLAP project underway is the Gardiner Gateway project, which is intended to reduce congestion, improve safety, provide
parking, and improve drainage on several roads in Gardtner, the north entrance to Yellowstone National Park. Of the total estimaled
cost of $15. 7 million, Park County has cash and in kind matches of $819,820 through 2019. The project was completed in 2019, and the
assets turned over to the county. Park County was reimbursed $7,974 from the federal government for engineering work related to the
project which was initially paid for by the county, This is expected to be the last payment.

• FEMA, Federal Emergency Management Agency, awarded two grant to help defray the costs of 2018 and 2019 spring flooding. The
2018 award was $83,532 and the 2019 award was $116,732 for 2019.

• The Sheriff's Department received a three- year COPS grant to assist in hiring an additional deputy. The grant will provide $125,000
over three years to defray the personnel cost. 'The COPS grant reimbursed $41,927 in 2019. A second COPS grant was awarded with
the same funding parameters. The second COPS grant reimbursed $20,006 in 2019.

• A new Shields River Road Federal Lands Access Program award was started in 2018 for a project which Park County matched funding
of 13.42%, or $24,156, in 2019, for a total project cost of $180,000.

• The Tom Miner Creek Road Capital Improvements project will total $2,461,559, and final payments were made in the amount of $3,885.
• There are multiple on-going grants which help fund the Health Department annually. In 2019, $176,541 in state grants funded Maternal

Child Health, Public Health Preparedness, Asthma, Tobacco and Women, Infant and Child programs.
• The federal government awarded grants through its Homeland Security programs. A new portable repeater grant received $50,811 in 

funding, the Pre Disaster Mitigation plan received $1,875, and a new Sheep Mountarn tower repeater grant received $77,568 in 2019.
• The Victim Witness position program grant received $43,859 in 2019. 
• The Disaster and Emergency Services position receives partial funding annually. In 2019, the DES position and program received

$35,775,
• An Economic Development pass through grant awarded by the Montana State Department of Commerce to Printing for less.com

amounted to $85,0001n 2019.
• A new free public bus route has been established using $61,730 in state funds for operating expenses, and community donors pay the

balance of the expenditures.
• The Airport received $51,040 in grant funds to support a Master Plan of development for the physical space at Mission Field.
• The Missouri River Drug Task Force position in the Sheriff's Office is partially funded by the MT Board of Crime Control and received

$29,130. MRDTF received an addilionar $3,154 from state forfeiture funds. 
• Various Weed grants account for $21,932 in 2019, along with a Southwest Juvenile Detention grant for $5,708. A GIS (Geographic

Information System) grant for $23,348 from the Montana Land Information Act was distributed through the Montana State Library to
update the county's land designations and boundaries. Angel Line also received grant funds in the amount of $3,300 ln 2019,

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Park County's finances for all those with an interest in the 
government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Park County Finance Office, 414 E. Callender Street, Livingston, MT 59047. 
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PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2-019 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities ActMties Total 

ASSETS 

Cash and equivalents $ 3,115,752 $ 316,575 $ 3,432,327 
Investments 9,335,000 9,335,000 
Receivables: 

Taxes/assessments 235,264 262,543 497,807 
Resort tax 50,503 50,503 
CDBG 221,661 221,661 
Insurance 69,846 69,846 
Governments 587,223 587,223 
Other 21,867 21,867 

Inventories 120,390 120,390 
Prepaids 355 355 

Cash and equivalents 151,551 151,551 
Investments 1,345,512 1,345,512 

Capital assets: 
Capital assets not be1ng depreciated-land and 
construction ln progress 1,337.428 52,528 1,389,956 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 22,845,878 547,238 23,393,116 

Total assets 37,94\167 2,675,947 40,617,114 

DEF'ERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Other post-employment benefits 45,194 3,121 48,315 
Pension plans 1 602 747 62 918 1,665,665 

lotal deferred outflows of resources 1 647,941 66,039 1,713,980 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable-vendors 51,799 51,799 
Unearned revenue 2,500 2,500 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due withln one year: 
Notes 118,777 118,777 
Compensated absences 50,466 6,838 57,304 

Due in more than one year: 
Notes 760,187 760,187 
Compensated absences 454,192 61,539 51:5,731 
Landfill closure/postclosure costs payable 1,404,502 1,404,502 
Total other post-employment benefits liability 1,201,216 82,946 1,284,162 
Net pension liability 4,122,353 251,049 4,373,402 

Total liabilities 6
1
761,490 1

1
806,874 8,568,364 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Other post-employment benefits 10,577 730 11,307 
Penston plans 1?70,265 50,058 1.820,313 

Total deferred inflows of resources 1,780,832 50,788 1,831,620 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 
Net Investment in capital assets 23,304,342 599,766 23,904,108 
Restricted for: 

General government 1,164,541 1,164,541 
Public safety 1,178,071 1,178,071 
Public works 476,264 476,264 
Public health 106,926 106,926 
Soclal and economic services 25,813 25,813 
Culture and recreation 485,650 485,650 
Housing and community development 221,661 221,661 
Cap1tal projects 8,807,597 8,807,597 
landfill closure/postclosure costs 92,561 92,561 

Unrestricted (deficit) (4?24,079) 191 997 {4,532,082) 

Total net position (deficit) $ 31,046,786 $ 884,324 $ 31,931,110 

See notes to basic financial statements, 10 



Functions/Programs 

Governmental actlvltles: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Public health 
Social and economic services 
Culture and recreation 
Housing and community 
development 
Other current charges 
Interest on long-term debt 
lntergovermental 

Total governmental activitres 

Business-type activities: 
landfill 
Refuse Facility 

Total buslness-type activities 

Total 

PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Charges for 
Exeenses Services 

$ 3,507,722 $ 388,558 
3,479,334 300,401 
2,745,989 105,982 

649,252 114,653 
440,462 11,157 

1,128,246 47,283 

138,954 
404,665 

32,064 
117,814 

12,644
1
502 968,034 

30,209 77 
1,347,715 1,271,644 

1,377
1
924 1,271 

I 
721 

$ 14,022,426 $ 2,239
1
755 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ 246,662 
354,361 
659,555 
225,069 
104,401 
12,236 

85,000 

117,814 

1,805,098 

5,632 

5632 

$ 1
1
810i?30 

Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 

Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change In net position 

Net position - beginning 

Net position - ending 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

$ -

128,379 
2,641,458 

2,769,837 

$ 2
1
769

1
B37 

See notes to basic financial statements, 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Change in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities ActMlies Totat 

$ (2,872,502) $ $ (2,872,502) 
(2,696,193) (2,696,193) 

661,006 661,006 
(309,530) (309,530) 
(324,904) (324,904) 

(1 ,068, 727) (1,068,727) 

(53,954) (53,954) 
(404,665) (404,665) 

(32,064) (32,064) 

(7,101,533) (7,101,533) 

(30,132) (30,132) 
(70,439) (70,439) 

!100,571) (100,571) 

(7, 10� ,533) (100,571) (7,202, i04) 

6,968,383 6,968,383 
56,974 56,974 

2,397,667 2,397,667 
257,924 16,393 274,317 
128,880 45 128,925 
51,956 1,030 52,986 
51 858 !51,858)

9,913,642 (34,390) 9,879,252 

2,812,)09 (134,961) 2,677,148 

28,234,677 1,019,285 29,253,962 

S 31,046,786 $ 884,324 $31,931,110 
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PARK COUNTY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMEN1ALFUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Public 
General Road Safe!� PILT 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $347,889 $ 2,574 $838,044 $ 23 
Investments 500,000 
Receivables: 

Taxes/assessments 46,656 20,662 57,792 
Governments 73,092 117,457 22,259 176 
Resort tax 
CDBG 
Insurance 69,846 
Other 6,032 

Due from otherfunds 377,-900 453,230 
Inventories 95,651 
Prepaid items 

Total assets $851,569 $236,344 $987,941 $953,429 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable-vendors $ 4,857 $ - $ 8,448 $ 

Due to other funds 2,300 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 4,857 8,448 2,300 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue-laxes/assessments 46,656 20,662 57.792 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) 
Nonspendabler 

Prepald Items 
lnvenLory 95,651 
Noncurrenl portion of interfund 

receTvable 
Restricted for: 

General government 
Public safety 921,701 
Public works 120,031 
Public health 
SocTal and economic servfces 
Culture and recreation 
Housing and community development 
Capltal projects 

Committ.ed for: 
General govemmenl 951,129 
Public safety 

Unassigned 800,056 

Total fund balances (deficlls) 800,056 215,682 921,701 951,129 

Total llabilltles, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances (deficits), $851,569 $236,344 $987,941 $953.429

See notes to basic financial statements. 

General 
Capital 

Road C!P lmerovement 

$ 355 $ 7 
8,835,000 

39,963 

10,000 

$ 355 $ 8,884,970 

$ 31,345 $ 
550,000 276,600 

581,345 276,600 

5,000 

8,603,370 

!580,990)

j580,990) 8,608,370 

$ 355 $ 8,884,970 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Funds 

1,926,860 

110,154 
334,276 

50,503 
221,661 

15,835 

24,739 
355 

2,684,383 

7.1·49 
12,230 
2

1
500 

21.879 

110,154 

355 
24,739 

l .115,540
184,803
198,869 
100,937
21,388 

464,643
221,661 
199,227 

33,720 
(13,532) 

2,552,350 

S 2,684,383 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 3,115,752 
9,335,000 

235.264 
587,223 

50,503 
221.661 

69,846 
21,867 

841,130 
120,390 

355 

$ 14.598,9911 

$ 51,799 
841,130 

2,500 

895.429 

235.264 

355 
120,390 

5,000 

1.115,540 
1,106,504 

318,900 
100,937 
21,388 

464,643 
221,661 

8,802,597 

951,129 
33,720 

205
1
5"34 

13,468,298 

$ 14,598,991 
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PARK COUNTY 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2019 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 

Total fund balances, governmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds. 

Deferred •inflows of resources related to taxes and assessments are not available to pay current 
period expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds. 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not 
reported in the funds: 

Deferred outflows: 

Pensions 
Other post-employment benefits 

Deferred Inflows: 

Pensions 
Other post-employment benefits 

Long-term liabilities, such as notes payable, compensated absences, the net pension liability and the 
total other post-employment benefits liability, are not due and payable in the current period and, 

therefore, are not included in the funds. 

Net position of governmental activities 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

$ 13,468,298 

24,183,306 

235,264 

1,602,747 
45,194 

(1,770,255) 
(10,577) 

(6,707,191) 

$ 31,046,786 
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PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

General 
Capital 

General Road Public Safe\}: PILT Road CIP lmerovement 
REVENUES 

Taxes/assessments $2,040,400 $ 479.207 $1,407,380 $ . $ - $ . 

Fines and forfeitures 115,765 
Licenses and permits 35,050 12,919 3,605 
Intergovernmental 571,701 700,954 208,604 1,469,004 30,000 
Charges for services 435,114 176 108,895 
Investment earnings 45,861 11,160 40 170,927 
Miscellaneous 68,340 3,701 4,288 5,553 

Total revenues 3,312,231 1,196.957 1,732,772 1.485.717 30 .. 040 170,927 

EXPENDITURES 
Current 

General governmen\ 2,816,751 53,822 
Public safety 135,638 2,264,183 330,910 
Public works 127,227 1,345,159 68 14,449 24,156 

Public health 436,896 
Social and economlc sen1ices 187.480 5,000 
Culture and recreation 4,385 
Housing and community 
development 53,954 
Other current charges 

Debi service: 
Principal 24,156 24,697 
Interest and other charges 6,664 4,795 

Capital outlay 6,289 68,127 879,811 3,885 
Intergovernmental 

Total expenditures 3,766,620 1,375,979 2,332,310 419,292 694,260 28.041 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (456,389) (179,022) (599,538) 1,066.425 (864,220) 142,886 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Insurance recoveries 240 6,078 
Sale of capital assets 725 96,458 
Transfers in 469,327 520,836 742,864 269,999 7,167 
Transfers out {53,071) (148,758) (51,200) (975,309) (167,351) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 416,256 373,043 794.200 (975,309) 269,999 (160,184) 

Net change in fund balances (40,133) 194,021 194,662 91,116 (594,221) (17.298) 

Fund balances• beginning 840,189 21,661 727,039 860.013 13,231 8.625,668 

Fund balances (deficits)• ending $ 800,056 $ 215,682 $ 921,701 $ 951,129 $(580,990) $ 8,608,370 

See notes to basic financial statements 

Total Total 
Nonmajor Governmental 

Funds Funds 

$ 3,058,953 $ 6,gas,940 
20,325 136,090 

B,426 60,000 
1,540,420 4,520,683 

253.358 797,543 
29,936 257,924 

108,320 190,202 

5,019,738 12,946,382 

504,272 3,374,845 
659.459 3,390,190 
568,937 2,079,996 
206,709 643,605 
212,665 405,145 

1,079,497 1,083,882 

85,000 138,964 

404,665 404.665 

68,393 117,246 
20,605 32,064 

207,497 1,165,609 
117,814 117,814 

4.135.513 12,954.015 

884,225 (5,633} 

6,318 
97,183 

789,327 2,799·,520 
(1,351,973) (2,747,662} 

(562,646) 155,359 

321,579 149,726 

2,230,771 13,318,572 

$ 2,552,350 $ 13,468,298 
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PARK COUNTY 
-RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because.: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of these assets ls allocated over their estimated lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

This is the amount by which capital outlay {$1,165,609) exceeded: depreciation {$1,142,786) in 
the current period. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales and 
trade-ins) is to decrease net position. 

Donated capital assets. 

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay curreht obligations. In 
contrast, such revenues are reported in the statement of activities when earned. 

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of pension benefits is reported as pension expense. 

Governmental funds report debt proceeds as current financial resources. In contrast, the 
statement of activities treats such issuance of debt as a 'liability. Governmental funds report 
repayment of principal as an expenditure. In contrast, the statement of activities treats such 
repayments as a reduction in long-term liabilities. This is the amount of debt principal' 
repayments. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current flnancial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds: 

Compensated absences 
Other post-employment benefits 

Change In net position of governmental activities 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

$ 149,726 

22,823 

(45,227) 

2,390,597 

13,818 

315,289 

i 17.246 

(26,913) 
(125,250) 

$ 2,812 109 
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PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Business•!l�e Activities 

Total 
Refuse Enterprise 

landfill Facilit� Funds 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equlvalents $ 51,309 $ 265,266 $ 316,575 
Receivables: 

Taxes/assessments 19,860 242 683 262,543· 

Total current assets 71,169 507 949 579.118 

Non-current assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and· cash equivalents 151,561 15i,551 
Investments 1,345,512 1,345,512 

1.497,063 1,497,063 
Capital assets'. 

land 52,528 52,528 
Buildings and improvements 54,241 397,007 451,248 
Equipment and furniture 598,875 1,361,650 1,960,525 

Less: accumulated depreciation (617,378) p,247,157) (1,864
1
535) 

35,738 564,028 599',766 

Total non-current assets 1,532,801 564,028 2,096,829' 

Total assets 1,603,970 1,071,977 2,675,947 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension plans 62,918 62,918 
Other post-employment benefits 3,121 3 121 

Total deferred outflows of resources 66,039 66,039 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Compensated absences 6,838 6,838 

Non-current liabllfties: 
Compensated absences 61,539 61,539 
Landfill closure/postclosure costs payable 1,404,502 1,404,502 
Net pension liability 251,049 251,049 
Total other post-employment benefits liability 82,946 82,946 

Total non-current liabilities 1 404 502 395,534 1
1
800,036 

Total liabilities 1,404,502 402,372 1,806,874 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension plans 50,058 50,058 
Other post�employment benefits 730 730 

Total deferred ihflows of resources 50
1
788 50 788 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 35,738 564,028 599,766 
Restricted: 

Landfill closure/postclosure 92,561 92,561 
Unrestrfcted 71 169 120,828 191,997 

Total net position $ 199,468 $ 684,856 $ 884,324 

See notes to basic financial statements 16 



PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Business-t�ee Activities 
Total 

Refuse Enterprise 
Landfill Facllit� Funds 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ $ 27,605 $ 27,605 
Assessment revenue 77 1,244,039 1,244,116 

Total operating revenues 77 1,271 644 1,271,721 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Personal services 438,855 438,855 
Supplies 60.444 60,444 

Purchased services 1,238 728,308 729,546 
Fixed charges 21,906 55,568 77,474 
Depreciation 7065 64,540 71,605 

Total operating expenses 30,209 1,347,715 1,377,924 

Operat1ng loss (30,132) (76,071} (106,203) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES 
Interest and investment revenue 16,393 16,393 
Miscellaneous revenue 45 46 

Operating, grants and contributions 5,632 5,632 
Gain on disposal of capital assets 1,030 1,030 

Total non-operating revenues 16,393 6 707 23,100 

Loss before transfers (13,739) (69,364) (83,103) 

Transfers out (51,858} (51,858) 

Ctiange in net position (13,739) (121,222) (134,961) 

Net position - beginning 213,207 806,078 1
1
019,285 

Net position - ending $ 199,468 $ 684,856 $ 884,324 

See notes to basic financial statements. 17 



PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash recei,ved from customers $ 
Cash paid to employees 
Cash paid to supplters for goods and servlces 

Net cash used by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Cash received from mis·cellaneous sources 
Cash paid for operating transfers out 
Cash paid for landfill olosure/postclosure care costs 

Net cash used by noncapltal financing activities 

CASH' nows FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES. 
Cash received from sale of capital assets 

Net cash provided by capital financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Net change tn Investments 
Interest received 

Net cash used' by investing activities 

Change in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and' cash equivalents - be.ginning (Landfill Includes restricted cash 
and cash equivalents of $336,899) 

Cash and cash equivalents - ending: (Landfill includes restricted cash and 
cash equivalents of$ 151,551) $ 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating· loss $ 

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating 
activities: 

Depreciation 
Other post-employment benefits 
Pensions 
Increase (�ecrease) in taxes/assessments receivable 
Decrease In compensated absences 

Net cash used by operating activities $ 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

Business-type Activities 
Total 

Refuse Enterprise 
Landfill Facility Funds 

1,439 '$ 1,245,372 $ 1,246,811 
(408,296) (408,296} 

(23,144) (844,320) (867,464) 

(21,705) (7,244) (28,9492 

45 45 
(51,858) (51,858) 

(41
1
901) (41

1
9011 

i41,901) (51,813} {93,714) 

1,030 1,030 

1,030 1,030 

(127,808) (127,808) 
16,393 16,393 

(111,415) {111,41'5) 

(175,021) (58,027) (233,048) 

377,881 323,293 701,174 

202,860 $ 265,266 $ 468,126 

(30,132) $ (76,071) $ (106,203) 

7,065 64,540 71,605 
7,983 7,983 

11,687 11,687 
1,362 (26,272) (24,910) 

10,889 10,889 

{21,705) $ {7,244) $ {28,949) 
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ASSETS 

PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

External 
Investment 
Trust Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,269,294 
Investments 60,557 
Taxes/assessments receivable 

Total assets 4,329,851 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Due to special districts 
Due to state 
Due to schools 
Due to cities/towns 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net position held in trust for external participants $ 4,329,851 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

Agenc� Funds 

$ 926,133 

791,019 

$ 1,717,152 

$ 347,328 
50,742 

333,040 
419,360 
566,682 

$ 1,717.152 
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PARK COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions $ 
Interest 

Total additions 

DEDUCTIONS 
Distribution of lnvestments 

Change In net posltlon 

Net position - begl'nning 

Net position - ending $ 

See notes to basic financial statements. 

External 
lnvestmeht 
Trust Fund 

8,485,518 
73,630 

8,55'9,148 

8,921,587 

(362,439) 

4,692,290 

4,329,851 
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PARK COUNTY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the government have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for 
state and local governments through its pronouncements (statements and interpretations). 

The government adopted the provisions of the following GASS statement: 

GASS Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This Statement 
improves the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and 
direct placements. 

The government's significant accounting policies are described below. 

Reporting Entity 

For financial reporting purposes, the government has included all funds, organizations, agencies, boards, commissions and authorities. 
The government has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable and other organizations for 
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the government are such that exclusion would cause the government's 
financial statements to misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set forth criteria to be considered 
in determining financial accountability. Based on the criteria established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the 
government has no component units. 

Related Organizations - The Board of County Commissioners is responsible for appointing members of the boards of other 
organizations, but the government's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on all of the 
nonfiduciary activities of the government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support, Fiduciary funds are excluded from the 
govemment-wide financial statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program 
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revenues 
include 1) charges for seNices which report fees and other charges provided by a given function or identifiable activity 2) operating 
grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues 
are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmental funds and 
major individual enterprise funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and_ Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the 
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by 
the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be 
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this 
purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are reco(ded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt seNice expenditures, as 
well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General 
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under 
capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Property taxes, Hcenses, and interest associated With the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so 
have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the 
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. Entitlements and shared revenues are 

21 



PARK COUNTY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

recorded at the titne of receipt or earlier If the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. All other revenue items are considered to be. 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally 
result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and· 
expenses not meeting this definitron are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

The government reports the following major governmental funds: 

The general fund is used to account for all financial resources, except those required by law or administrative action to be 
accounted for in another fund. The general fund is always reported as a major fund in the governmental fund statements. 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted by law or 
administrative action to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The following special 
revenue funds are reported as major. 

The road fund accounts for resources accumulated from property taxes and state entitlement and payments made for 
the maintenance, repair and construction of county-owned roads. 

The public safety fund accounts for resources accumulated from property taxes, state entitlement and charges for 
services and payments made for providing law enforcement and public safety services. 

The PIL T fund accounts for resources accumulated from the federal government for payments in lieu of taxes. 
Payments made from the fund are at the discretion of the Board of County Commissioners. 

The road CIP and general capital improvement funds account for financial resources earmarked or segregated for the 
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, purchase of equipment and other project-oriented activities. 

The government reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The landfill and refuse facility funds account for the activities of the government's landfill and sanitation services. 

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 

The government's investment trtist fund accounts for the external portion of the cash management pool, which represents 
resources that belong to legally separate entities. 

Agency funds are custodial in nature and are used to account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency 
capacity. 

Assets. Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/Inflows and Net Position/Fund Balance 

Cash and Investments 

The County maintains and controls an investment pool consisting of funds belonging to the government and also of funds held by the 
County Treasurer belonging to legally separate entities, such as school districts, fire and water districts and other special districts. The 
investment pool is managed by the County Treasurer and overseen by the. Board of County Commissioners. The investment pool is not 
registered with the SEC. The County Treasurer ls responsible for setting the investment policies for the pool, reviewing and monitoring 
investments to ensure the County's investment policies are met and ensuring investments are in compliance with State statute. 

School districts and other legally separate districts within the County hold their funds with the County Treasurer. The districts have, at 
their option, elected to participate in the County's investment pool. 22% of the investment pool belongs to these districts. 

Allowable investments include direct obligations of the United States Government, repurchase agreements, savings or time deposits in 
a state or national bank, building and loan associations, savings and loan associations, or credit unions insured by the FDIC, FSLIC, or 
NCUA and the State Short Term Investment Poot (STIP). STIP is an investment program managed and adminlstered under the 
direction of the Montana Board of Investments (MBOI) as authorized by the Unified Investment Program. The STIP portfolio is reported 
at fair value versus amortized cost. 
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PARK COUNTY 
NOTES TO BAS IC F INANC IAL STATEMENTS 

The pool unit val ue is fixed at $1 for purchases and redemptions. Income is automatically reinvested in additional units. The 
government did not provide or obtain any legally binding guarantees to support the value of the units . The pool does not include any 
involuntary participants. 

Investments a re measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements are those that Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASS) Statements requ i re or permit in the statement of net position at the end of each reporting perlod. 
The government had no nonrecurring fair value measurements. Fair value measurements are categorized based on the valuation 
inputs used to measure an asset's fair val ue : Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets: Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs . Cash on hand, demand , savings and time 
deposits, STIP and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition are considered 
cash equivalents. 

I nvestment income from the pool is a l located to ind ividual funds of the County and to the external participants based on the fund or 
participant's cash and investment balance at the end of each month . The net change in fair value of the pool is also allocated to 
ind iv idual funds of the County and to the external participants based on the fund or participant's cash and investment balance at the 
end of the year. The government does not charge an administrative fee to all participants in the pool or individual investment accounts. 

Receivables and Payables 

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are 
referred to as either "due to/from other funds'' (i .e .  the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i .e .  the non­
current portion of interfund loans) . Any residua l  balances outstandi ng between the governmental activities and busi ness-type activities 
are reported in the government-wide financia l statements as " i nternal balances ." In governmental fund financial statements, advances 
between funds are offset by an amount reported as nonspendab le fund balance to ind icate that they are not available for appropriation 
and are not expendable available financial resources. 

Receivables from and payables to external parties are reported separately and are not offset in the proprietary fund financial statements 
and bus iness-type activi t ies of the government-wide financial statements, un less a right of offset exists . 

Most property taxes a re levied in September of each fiscal year, based on assessments as of the prior January 1 .  Real property taxes 
are bi l led as of November 1 and are payable in two payments , November 30 and May 3 1 . Unpaid taxes become delinquent on 
December 1 and June 1 .  Most personal property taxes are due and payable on January 1 and become delinquent February 1. Property 
taxes are maintained and collected by the County Treasurer. No al lowance is made for unco!lectib1e taxes as they are not considered 
significant. 

Inventories and Prepaids 

Al l inventories are valued at cost . I nventories are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than when purchased . Certain 
payments to vendors reflect costs appl icable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid i tems in both the government­
Wide and fund financial statements. 

Restricted Assets 

The government is required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annua l  contributions to a trust to finance the closure and 
postclosure care costs of its landfi ll .  The amount is reported as restricted assets. 

Capi1al Assets 

Capital assets , which include property, plant ,  equipment, and i nfrastructure assets (e.g . ,  roads, bridges , sidewalks , and similar items) 
are reported in the appl icable governmenta l or business-type activit ies column in the government-wide financial statements. The 
government has elected not to report major infrastructure assets retroactively .  Capital assets are defined by the government as assets 
with an in itial ,  individual cost of more than $5,000 for machinery and equipment, $ 1 0,000 for buildings and improvements and $25 ,000 
for infrastructure and an estimated useful life in excess of 5 years. Such assets a re recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed . Donated capital assets a re recorded at acquis it ion val ue, which is determined as of the date of 
donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repa irs that do not add to the value of the asset or material ly extend assets lives are. 
not capital ized. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of enterprise funds is included as part of the capita l ized 
value of the assets constructed . There was no capita lized interest for the year ended June 30, 201 9 .  Depreciation on capital assets is 
calcu lated on the straight- line method over the fol lowing estimated useful lives: 

Assets 
Land improvements 
Infrastructure 
Bu i ld ings 
Machinery and equipment 

Years 
1 0-1 5 

50 
40- 1 00

5-30
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PARK COUNTY 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Collections Not Capitalized 

Certain collections of historic artifacts and works of art are not reported in the accompanying financial statements. These assets have 
not been capitalized because they meet all of the conditions that qualify them as collections that are not required to be capitalized. 
These conditions are the collections are held for public exhibition or education in the furtherance of public service, not held for financial 
gain; the collections are protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved; and any sale proceeds are expected to be used to 
acquire other items for the collections. 

Compensated Absences 

Liabilities associated with accumulated vacation and sick leave are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund 
financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a 
result of employee resignations or retirements. 

Employees earn vacation leave ranging from 15 to 24 days per year depending on the individual's years of service. Accumulated 
vacation is restricted under State statute to a maximum accumulation of two times the amount earned annually. Sick leave fs 
accumulated at 12 days per year with no limitations on the amount that may be accumulated. Upon retirement or resignatlon, an 
employee is eligible for 100 percent of the accumulated vacation leave and 25 percent of the accumulated sick leave. 

Long-term Obligations 

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond issuance costs are recognjzed as an expense in the period incurred. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance 
costs, whether or not,withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the government's statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that 
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense until then. The government has two items that meet this 
criterion: pension plans and other post-employment benefits. 

In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This 
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The government has two items that meet the criterion for this category: 
pension plans and other post-employment benefits. 

In the governmental funds, the only deferred inflow of resources is for revenues that are not considered available. The government will 
not recognize the related revenues until they are available under the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, unavailable 
revenues from property taxes are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. 

Net Position 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 

Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation), plus capltal-related deferred outflows of resources, 
less capital-related borrowings and deferred inflows of resources. 

Restricted - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted - any portion of net position that does not meet the definition of "net investment ln capital assets" or "restricted." 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statemen1s. 

Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and 
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources 
are considered to be applied. 
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It is the government's policy to consider restricted - net position to have been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied. 

Fund Balance 

In the fund statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. The following classifications describe the relative 
strength of the spending constraints: 

Nonspendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact 

Restricted • amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of 
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, granters, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 

Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by the government itself, usrng Its highest level of decision-making authority 
(i.e., governing body). The government establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by pass�e of a resolution. To be 
reported as committed, amounts cannot be, used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level action to remove or 
change the. constraint. 

Assigned fund balance - amounts the government intends to use for a specific purpose. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an 
official or body to which the govemTng body delegates the authority, 

Unasstgned fund balance - amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive amounts are reported only in the general fund. 

The governing body has, by resolutioh, authorized the finance director and/or commissioners to assign fund balance. There was no 
assigned fund balance. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is avanable, the government 
considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund 
balances are available, the government considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and 
finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the governing body has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

NOTE 2.STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABIUTY 

Deficit Fund Eq_uity 

The Gardiner Lights ($2,229), Disaster ($11,303) and Road CIP ($580,990) funds had deficit fund balances as of June 30, 2019. The 
Gardiner Lights fund deficit occurred because current year expenditures exceeded current year revenues. The deficit Is expected to be 
eliminated with future lax collections. The Disaster fund deficit is a carryover from the prior year and is expected to be eliminated 
through a transfer from the Road fund. The deficit in the Road GIP fund occurred because the fund paid off emergency repairs for 2018 
flooding and the Convict Grade Bridge replacement. The deficit is expected to be eliminated with an lNTERCAP loan through the 
Montana Board of Investments. 

NOTE 3. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The government's cash, cash equivalents and Investments are reported as follows: 

Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 
Fiduciary funds 

$ 12,450,752 
1,813,638 
5,255,984 

$ 19,520,374 
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Total carrying value of cash, cash equivalents and Investments as of June 30, 2019, consisted of the following: 

Cash/Cash 
Eguivalents lnvestmehts_ Total 

Cash on hand $ 3,430 $ $ 3,430 
Cash in banks: 

Dematid deposits (229,833) (229,833) 
Savings deposits 267,695 267,695 
Time deposits 3,810,557 3,810,557 

U.S. Government securities 6,930,512 6,930,512 
Broker money market 151,551 151,551 
Short-term Investment Program (STIP) 8,586,462 8,586,462 

$ 8,779,305 $ 10,741,069 $ 19,520,374 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not 
be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2019, $568,698 of the 
government's bank balance of $4,874,780 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows: 

Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's 
trust department not in the government's name $ 568,698 

State statutes require that the government obtain securities for the uninsured portion of deposits as follows: 1.) securities equal to 50% 
of such deposits if the institution in which the deposits are made has a net worth to total assets ratio of 6% or more, or 2.) 100% if the 
ratio of net worth to total assets is less than 6%. State statutes do not specify in whose custody or name the collateral is to be held. The 
amount of collateral held for the government's deposits as of June 30, 2019, exceeded the amount required by state statute. 

Fair value measurements are as follows at June 30, 2019: 

Investments 
Debt securities: 

U.S. Government securities 

State Short-Term Investment Program (STIP) 

Fair Value 

Fair Value Measurements Using 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Inputs Inputs Inputs 

$ 6,930,622 $ 6,930,622 $ $
===== 

8,587,664 

$ 15,518,286 

Debt securities categorized as Level 1 are valued based on prices quoted in active markets for those securities. The government had 
no investments categorized as Level 2 or 3 inputs. 

The STIP investments are purchased in accordance with the statutorily mandated "Prudent Expert Principle". This pool is managed to 
preserve principal, while obtaining money market type returns and 24-hour liquidity. Funds may be invested for one or more days and 
redeemed with one business days' notice. The government's STIP ownership is represented by shares. Share prices are fixed at $1.00 
per share for transactional purposes. The STIP investment portfolio consists of securities with maximum maturity of 2 years or less. 
The portfolio is reported at fair value for financial reporting purposes. STIP income is distributed on the first calendar day of each 
month. Shareholders have the option to automatically reinvest their distribution income in additional shares. 

Interest Rate Risk. The government does not have a formal investment policy that llmits investment maturities as a means of managing 
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, under state statute, an investment may not have a 
maturity date exceeding 5 years, except when the investment is used in an escrow account to refund an outstanding bond issue in 
advance. 
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Credit Risk. Allowable investments include direct obligations of the United States Government, repurchase agreements, savings or time 
deposits in a state or national bank, building and loan associations, savings and loan associations, or credit unions insured by the 
FDIC, FSLIC, or NCUA and the State Short Term Investment Pool (STIP). The STIP portfolio is reported on at fair value, versus 
amortized cost. The government has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. The Short-Term Investment 
Pool (STlP) maintained by the State of Montana has certa,ln investments in derivatives. GASS requires the nature of the underlying 
securities and market, credit and legal risks be disclosed. Reference to the audit of the State of Montana would identify the level of risk 
associated with STIP. 

Investments made by the government are summarized below. The investments that are represented by specific identifiable investment 
securities are categorized in the following manner: Category 1-lnsured or registered, with securities held by the government or its agent 
in the government's name; Category 2-Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent 
in the govemment's name; Category 3-Uninsured and unreglstered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department 
or agent but not in the government's name. 

Custodial Credit Risk Catego� Carrying Fair 
1 2 3 Amount Value 

U.S. government securities $ 1,500,000 $ $ 5,430,512 $ 6,930,512 $ 6,930,622 
Broker money market 151,551 151 551 151.551 

$ 1,651,551 $ $ 5,430,512 7,082,063 7,082,173 
Uncategorized 

STIP 8,586,462 8,587,664 

$ 15,668,525 $ 15,669,837 

Following is the condensed schedule of changes in net position for the investment pool for the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Internal External Tota!

Net position - beginning of year $ 15,518,431 $ 4,692,290 $ 20,210,721 

Contributions from participants 12.458,516 8,485,518 20,944,034 
Investment earnings/change in fair value 277,125 73,630 350,755 
Distributions to participants {13,063,549} {8,921,587} (21,985, 136} 

Net position - end of year $ 15,190,523 $ 4,329,851 $ 19,520,374 
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Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Jult 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 622,193 $ $ $ 622,193 
Construction-in-progress 587,933 715,235 {587,933} 715,235 

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,210,126 715,235 {587,933} 1,337,428 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings/improvements 7,234,612 7,234,612 
Improvements other than buildings 4,574,561 22,310 4,596,871 
Machinery and equipment 7,256,954 366,893 (148,424) 7,475,423 
Infrastructure 11,599,816 3,039,701 {16,392} 14,623,125 

Total capital assets. being depreciated 30,665,943 3,428,904 {164,816} 33,930,031 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings/improvements (3,315,624) (136,494) (3,452,118) 
Improvements other than buildings (1,563,418) {231,245) (1,794,663) 
Machinery and equipment (4,407,555) (516,955) 118,742 (4,805,768) 
Infrastructure {774,359l {258,092} 847 {1,031,604} 

Total accumulated depreciation {10,060,956} {1,142,786) 119,589 {11,084,153} 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 20,604
!
987 2

1
286, 118 (45,227} 22,845,878 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 21,815,113 $ 3,001,353 $ {633.160} $ 24,183,306 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 118,547 
Public safety 280,379 
Public works 655,272 
Public health 3,393 
Social and economic 30,564 
Culture and recreation 54,631 

Total depreciation-governmental activities $ 1,142,786 
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Balance Balance 
Jul:t: 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30. 2019 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated 

Land $ 52,528 $ 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 52,528 

Capital assets, being depreciated 
Buildings and systems 299,952 
Improvements othef than buildings 151,296 
Machinery and equipment 2

1
258

1
283 

Total capital assets, being depreciated 2,709,531 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and systems (106,929) 
Improvements other than buildings (79,852) 
Machinery and equipment (1,903,907} 

Total accumulated depreciation {2,090,688} 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 618,843 

Business-type activities .capital assets, net $ 671,371 $ 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Business-type activities: 
Landfill 
Refuse facility 

Total depreciation-business-type activities 

lnterfund Transfers. Receivables and Payables 

lnterfund transfers consisted of the following· 

Governmental activities: 
General 
Road 
Public safety 
PILT 
Road CIP 
General capital improvement 
Nonmajor governmental funds 

Business-type activities: 
Landfill 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Transfer 
In 

469,327 
520,836 
742,864 

269,999 
7,167 

789,327 

2,799,520 

$ $ 

(297,758} 
(297,758} 

(9,948) 
(7,237) 

{54,420} 297.758 
{71,605) 297,758 

(71
1
605} 

(71,605} $ 

$ 7,065 
64,540 

$ 71,605 

$ 

Transfer 
Out 

(53,071) 
(148,758) 

(51,200) 
(975,309) 

(167,351) 
ti ,351,973} 

$ (2,747,662} 

$ (51,858} 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

416,256 
372,078 
691,664 

(975,309) 
269,999 

(160,184) 
{562,646} 

51,858 

(51,858} 

52,528 
52,528 

299,952 
151,296 

1,960
1
525 

2,411,773 

{116,877) 
(87,089) 

(1,660,569} 
(1,864

1
535} 

547,238 

599,766 

Transfers are normal recurring amounts used to fund operations of various governmental and business-type activities. 
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lnterfund balances as of June 30, 2019, consisted of the following: 

Operating Leases 

Governmental activities: 
General (2) 
PILT (2) 
General capital improvement (1), (2) 
Road CIP (1). (2), (3) 
Non major governmental funds (1 ), (2) 

Total governme.ntal activities 

1. Equipment purchases
2. Cover cash overdraft
3. GIP projects

Due from 
funds 

$ 377,900 
453,230 

10,000 

$ 841,130 

Due to 
funds 

$ 
(2,300) 

(276,600) 
(550,000) 
(12,230} 

$ {841,130} 

Long-term 
eortion 

$ 

5,000 

{5,000} 

$ 

The government leases equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Total rental expenses for operating leases were $36,527 for 
the year ended June 30, 2019. Scheduled minimum rental payments for succeeding years ending June 30, are as follows: 

Year ending 
June 30, 

Long-Term Debt 

Notes from direct borrowings consist of the following: 

Original 
Amount 

Durapatcher-2011 $ 77,500 
Dispatch and equipment-2017 (1) 357,500 
Search and rescue building-2013 (1) 700,000 

(1) INTERCAP, through Montana Board of lnveslmehts

2020 $ 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

32,978 
30,085 
17,750 
6,798 
3,795 

$ 91,406 

Interest 
Term Rate 

10 yr 1.63% 
7 yr 3.37% 
15 yr 3.37% 

Bc1lance 
Patment June 30, 2019 

Annual $ 15,500 
Semi-annual 289,554 
Semi-annual 573,910 

$ 878,964 

Notes from direct borrowings (INTERCAP) include a provision that interest is adjusted each February Pt , up to a maximum of 15 
percent. The loans are general obligation that requires backing by the full faith and credit of the government and obligates the 
government to levy a tax sufficient to repay the oblfgation, 
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes from direct borrowings are as follows: 

Year ending Governmental Activities 
June 30, Princieal Interest Total 

2020 $ 118,777 $ 28,410 $ 147,187 
2021 120,715 24,597 145,312 
2022 114,946 20,577 135,523 
2023 116,971 16,687 133,658 
2024 119,037 12,728 131,765 

2025-2028 288,518 20,402 308,920 

$ 878,964 $ 123,401 $ 1,002,365 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 
JUl:z'. 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Notes payable $ 996,210 $ $ (117,246) $ 878,964 $ 118,777 
Compensated absences 477,745 26,913 504,658 50,466 

Governmental activity long-term liabilities $ 1,473,955 $ 26,913 $ {117,246} $ 1,383,622 $ 169,243 

Business-type activities: 
Compensated absences $ 57,488 $ 10,889 $ $ 68,377 $ 6,838 

Business-type activity long-term liabilities $ 57,488 $ 10,889 $ $ 68,377 $ 6,838 

For the governmental activities, notes payable are liqufdated by several governmental funds and compensated absences are liquidated 
from where the terminated employee was paid from. 

Landfill Postclosure 

The landfill was officially closed in the fall of 2016. A final cover was placed on the landfill site in accordance with state and federal 
regulations The government Is required to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. 
The postclosure care costs will be paid on an annual basis and will reduce the postclosure care lfability. $1.404,502 is reported as a 
landfill postc1osure care liability as of June 30, 2019. Actual postclosure care costs may be higher due to inflation, changes ih 
technology, or changes in regulations. If additional postclosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or 
applicable laws and regulations), these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenue. 

In prior years, the government was required by state and federal laws and regulations to make annual contributions to a trust to finance 
postclosure care costs and correct1ve action, The government is in compliance with the requirements, and, as of June 30, 2019, 
$1,497,063 had been set aside for this purpose and is restricted and reported on the statement of net position as "restricted assets." The 
government expects that future inflation costs will be paid from interest earnings on these annual contributions. However, if interest 
earnings are inadequate or additional postclosure care requirements are determined (due to changes in technology or applicable laws 
and regulations), these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users or from future tax revenue. 

The following changes occurred in the closure and postclosure care liability during the year ended June 30, 2019: 

Balance 
July 1, 2018 Additions 

$ 1,446,403 $ 
-==�----

NOTE4. OTHER INFORMATION 

Risk Management 

Retirements 
Balance 

June 30, 2019 

$ (41,901) _$ __ 1...,,4_04_,=50=2=

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets: professional liability 
(i.e., errors and omissions); workers compensation (i.e., employee injuries): medical insurance costs; and environmental damages. A 
variety of methods is used to provide insurance for these risks. Policies, transferring all risks of loss, except for relatively small deductible 
amounts, are purchased for theft, damage or destruction of assets, professional liabilities and employee medical costs. The government 
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participates in a state-wide public risk pool, MACO, for workers' compensation coverage. The government pays monthly premiums for its 
employee injury insurance coverage. The agreement for formation of the pool provides that it will be self-sustaining through member 
premiums. There are no deductibles or maximum coverage limits in the plan. The government also participates in MACO's Joint Powers 
Jnsurance Authority which offers insurance for other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded 
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. Given lack of coverage available, the government has. no coverage 
for potential losses from environmental damages. 

lnterlocal Agreements 

The City of Livingston and Park County entered into an agreement to fund a library for City and County residents. The City maintains the 
library accounting records and includes the financial activities of the library in its financial statements. The County contributed $338,966 
during fiscal year 2019. 

The City of Livingston and Park County entered into agreements for the City-County Law Enforcement Dispatch Center and ambulance 
services. The City provides dispatch and ambulance services to the County. The County contributed $329,196 and $241,127, 
respectively, during fiscal year 2019 for these services. 

The City-County Airport is owned and operated jointly by the City of Livingston and Park County, The operation of the airport is 
accounted for by the County. The airport is administered by a five-member board, consisting of the two City-appointed members, two 
County-appointed members and one member-at-large appointed by the Airport Board. The budget is approved by the controlling 
members. The Airport Board exercises control over the airport's normal operations. 

Subsequent Events 

In August 2019, the government entered into a loan �greement with tl)e Montana Board of Investments. The loan amounted to $560,000 
for 15 years, with an interest rate of 3.37 percent. 

Commitments and Contingencies 

At year-end, the government had commitments outstanding, in the form of contracts, of approximately $865,000, primarily for 
construction projects and equipment. 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by granter agencies, principally the federal 
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, 
if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time. although the government expects such 
amounts, if any to be immaterial. 

Retirement Plans 

Plan Descriptions 

The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan {DBRP), administered by the Montana Public 
Employee Retirement Administration (MPERA), is a multiple-employer, cost-sharing plan established July 1, 1945, and governed by Title 
19, chapters 2 and 3, MCA) The PERS-DBRP provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and thelr 
beneficiaries. All new members are initially members of the PERS-DBRP and have a 12-month wrndow during which they may choose to 
remain in the PERS-DBRP or join the PERS-DCRP by filing an irrevocable election. Members may not be participants of both the 
defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans. Benefits are established by state law and can only be amended by the 
Legislature. Benefits are based on eligibility, years of service, and hi_ghest average compensation. Member rights are vested after five 
years of service. Additional information pertain1ng to membership, benefit structure, and prior years' actuarial valuations, as well as links 
to applicable statutes and administrative rules, may be obtained by visiting the PERS web site at mpera.mt.gov. 

The Sheriffs' Retirement System (SRS), administered by the Montana Public Employee Retirement Administration (MPERA), is a 
multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan established July 1, 1974, and governed by Title 19, chapters 2 & 7, MCA. This 
plan provides retirement benefits to all Department of Justice criminal and gambling Investigators hired after July 1, 1993, all detention 
officers hired after July 1, 2005, and to all Montana sheriffs. Benefits are established by state law and can only be amended by the 
Legislature. The SRS provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. Benefits are 
based on eligibility, years of service and highest average compensation. Member rights are vested after five years of service. Additional 
information pertaining to membership, benefit structure, and prior years' actuarial valuations, as well as links to applicable statutes and 
administrative rules, may be obtained by visiting the SRS web site at mpera,rnt.gov. 
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Pension Benefits 

Public Employees Retirement System 
Plan members hired prior to July 1, 2011 are eligible to retire at age 60 with 5 years of membership service, age 65 regardless of years 
of membership service or any age with 30 years of membership service. Benefits are calculated as follows: 1) if less than 25 years of 
membership service, 1. 785% of the member's highest average compensation (HAC) multiplied by years of service credit or 2) if 25 years 
of membership service or more, 2% of HAG multiplied by years of service credit. 

Plan members hired on or after July 1, 2011 are eligible to retire at age 65 with 5 years of membership service or age 70 regardless of 
years of membership service. Benefits are calculated as follows: 1) if less than 10 years of membership service, 1.5% of the member's 
HAC multiplied by years of service credit, 2) if between 10 and 30 years of membership service,1.785 of HAC multiplied by years of 
service credit, or 3) if 30 years of membership service or more, 2% of HAC multiplied by years of service credit. 

Plan members hired prior to July 1, 2011 are eligible for early retirement at age 50 with 5 years of membership service or any age with 
25 years of memberst)ip service. Plan members hired on or after July 1, 2011 are eligible for early retirement at age 55 with 5 years of 
membership service. Benefits are actuarially reduced. 

Second retirement applies to plan members re-employed in a PERS position after retirement. Plan members who retire before January 
1, 2016 and accumulate less than 2 years' additional service credit or retire on or after January 1, 2016 and accumulate less than 5 
years' additional service credit receive a refund of the plan member's contributions from the second employment plus regular interest at 
.77%. 

Plan members who retire before January 1, 2016 and accumulate at least 2 years of additional service credit receive a recalculated 
retirement benefit based on the laws in effect at second retirement. Plan members who retire on or after January 1, 2016 and 
accumulate 5 or more years of additional service credit receive the same retirement benefit as prior to their return to service and a 
second retirement benefit for the second period of service based on the laws in effect at second retirement. 

For members who have been retired at least 12 months, a Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA) will be made each year equal 
to 1 }. 3% for members hired prior to July 1, 2007, 2). 1.5% for members hired between July 1, 2007 and June 30, 2013 or, 3). Members 
hired on or after July 1, 2013: a). 1.5% for each year PERS is funded at or above 90%; b). 1.5% is reduced by . 1 % for each 2% PERS is 
funded below 90%; and c). 0% whenever the amortization period for PERS is 40 years or more. 

Sheriffs Retirement System 
SRS provides retirement. disability c1nd death benefits. Members with 20 years of membership service are eligible to retire. Retirement 
benefits are determined as 2.5 percent of the member's highest average compensation (HAC) multiplied by years of service credit. 

For plan members hired prior to July 1, 2011, HAC is determined during any consecutive 36 months. For plan members hired on or after 
July 1, 2011, HAC is determined during any consecutive 60 months. For plan members hired on or after July 1, 2013, HAC is 
determined on 110% annual cap on compensation. Members age 50 with 5 years of membership service are eligible for early retirement. 
Retirement benefits are determined using HAC and years of service credit at early retirement, reduced to the actuarial equivalent. 

Plan members are eligible for early retirement at age 50 with 5 years of membership service. This benefit calculated using HAC and 
service credit at early retirement and reduced to the actuarial equivalent commencing at the earliest of age 60 or the attainment of 20 
years of service credit. 

Second Retirement applies to retirement system members re-employed in a SRS position on or after July 1, 2017. If the member works 
more than 480 hours in a calendar year and accumulates less than 5 years of service credit before terminating again, the member a) is 
not awarded service credit for the period of reemployment; b) is refunded the accumulated contributions associated with the period of 
reemployment; c) starting the first month following termination of service, receives the same retirement benefrt previously paid to the 
member: and d) does not accrue post-retirement benefit adjustments during the term of reemployment but receives a Guaranteed 
Annual Benefit Adjustment (GABA} in January immediately following second retirement. If the member works more than 480 hours in a 
calendar year and accumulates at least 5 years of service credit before terminating again, the member: is awarded service credit for the 
period of reemployment. Starting the first month following termination of service, the member receives the same retirement benefit 
previously paid to the member and a second retirement benefit for the period of reemployment calculated based on the laws in effect as 
of the members rehire date. The member does not accrue post-retirement benefit adjustments during the term of reemployment but 
receives a GABA on the initial retirement benefit in January immediately following second retirement, and on the second retirement 
benefit starting in January after receiving that benefit for at least 12 months. A member who returns to covered service is not eligible for 
a disability benefit. 
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All metnbers contribute 7.9% of their compensation .  Interest is credited to member accounts at the rates determined by the Board. All 
member contributions wi l l  be decreased to 6.9% on January 1 fol lowing the actuary valuation results that project the amortization period 
to drop below 25 years. Member contributions are made through an "em ployer pick-up'' arrangement that results in deferral of taxes on 
the contributions. 

Employers contributed 8 . 57% of each member's compensation . This was temporari ly increased from 7.07% on July 1 ,  201 3. Beginning 
July 1 ,  2014 ,  employer contributions will increase an additional 0 . 1% a year over 1 0  years, through 2024. The additional employer 
contributions terminate on January 1 following actuary va luation results that show the amortization period of the PERS-DBRP has 
d ropped below 25 years and would remain below 25 years fol lowing the reductions of both the additional employer and member 
contributions rates. The State's General Fund contributes an additional .37% of earned compensation .  Beginning July 1 ,  20 1 3, 
employers are required to make contributions on working retirees' compensation. Member contributions for working retirees are not 
required. 

Sheriffs Retirement System 

Members contribute 1 0.495% of their compensation . I n terest is credited at rates determined by the Board. Mernber contributions are 
made through an "employer pick-up" arrangement that results ln deferral of taxes on the contr1butions. Employers contribute 1 3 . 1 1 5% of 
each member's compensation. The rate increased from 1 0. 1 1 5% to 1 3. 1 1 5% on July 1 ,  20 1 8 . 

Net Pension Liabi l i ty, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At J une 30, 2019 ,  the government recorded a l iabi l ity of $3 ,258 ,699 (PERS) and $1 , 1 1 4 ,703 (SRS) for its proportionate share of 1he net

pension l iabi l ity. 

PERS has a special funding situation in which the State of Montana is legally responsible for making contributions di rectly to PERS on 
behalf of the government. Due to the existence of this special funding situation , the government is required to report the portion of the 
State of Montana 's  proportionate share of the collective net pension liabi l ity. The government' s and State of Montana's proportionate 
share of the net pension l iablllty are presented below: 

Employer proportionate share 
State of Montana proportionate 

share associated with employer 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Net Pension Liabil ity June 30, 201 9 
PERS SRS 

3,258,699 

1 ,095,427 

4 ,354, 1 26 

$ 

$ 

1 , 1 1 4 ,703 

1 , 1 1 4,703 

The net pension l iability was measured as of June 30, 20 1 8, and the total pension l iabi l ity used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 201 7 for P ERS and SRS .  The government's proportioh of the net pension l iabi lity 
was based on the government's contributions received by PERS and SRS during the measurement period July 1 ,  20 1 7, th rough Juhe 
30, 201 8, relative to the total employer contributions received from all PERS and SRS participati ng employers . At June 30, 20 1 9, the 
government's proportion was . 1 561 and 1 .4829 percent for PER S  and SRS ,  respectively . 

For the year ended June 30, 201 9, the government recognized $201 .750 (PERS) and ($65,589) (SRS) for its proportionate share of the 
pension expense . The government also recognized grant revenue of $73,1 08 (PERS) for the support provided by the State of Montana 
for I ts proportionate share of the pension expense that is associated with the governtnent. Tota l pension expense recognized was 
$274 ,858 and ($65 ,589) for PERS and SRS,  respectively. 
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At June 30, 2019, the government reported its proportionate share of PERS and SRS deferred outflows and Inflows of resources from 
the following sources: 

PERS SRS 
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and 
actual economic experience $ 247,802 $ $ 61,480 $ 2,483 

Changes in actuarial assumptions 277,103 633,885 1,054,086 
Difference between projected and 

actual investment earnings 50,608 31,204 
Changes in the proportion and 

differences between actual and 
expected contributions 599,156 82,776 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 291,798 153,597 

$ 816,103 $ 649,764 $ 848,962 $ 1,170,549 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the government's contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30: PERS SRS 

2020 $ 83,977 $ (121,245) 
2021 39,468 (147,768) 
2022 (227,508) (202,075) 
2023 {20,796) (4,096) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

For each of the retirement plahs, the total pension liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applfed to all periods included in the measurement: 

Investment rate of return, net 
of investment and 
administrative expenses 
Salarv increases 
Inflation 

PERS SRS 

7.65% 7.65% 

3.50% 3.50% 

2.75% 2.75% 

Mortality rates for the PERS and SRS retirement plans are based on the RP-2000 Combined Employee and Annuitant Mortality Tables 
projected to 2020 using Scale BB. set back one year for males. 

The long-term expected return on pension plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared for the PERS and' 
SRS plans. The most recent PERS and SRS analysis, performed for the period covering fiscal years 2011 through 2016, is outlined In a 
report dated May 5, 2017, which is located on the MPERA website. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of 
return assumption. These factors include rates of return adopted by similar public sector systems, as well as the utilization of a building 
block method ih which best-estimate ranges of expected Mure real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment 
expense and infl'atlon) are developed by the investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce 
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
then adding expected inflation. Best estimates are presented as the arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in 
the PERS and SRS target asset allocation as of June 30, 2018, and are summarized in the following table: 
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Long-Term 
Target Expected 
Asset Real Rate of 

Asset C lass Allocation Return 

Cash  equivalents 2.6% 4.00% 
Domestic equity 36.0% 4.55% 
Foreign equity 1 8.0% 6.35% 
Fixed income 23.4% 1 .00% 
Private equity 1 2.0% 7.75% 
Real estate 8.0% 4 .00% 

1 00.0% 

Discount Rate 

Public Employees Retirement System 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7 ,65%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate 
assumed that contributions from participat1ng plan members, employers, and nonemployer contributing entities wi l l  be made based on 
the Board's funding policy, which establ ishes the contractually required rates under Montana Code Annotated . The State contributes 
0. 1 %  of salaries for local governments and 0.37% for schoo l governments. In addition, the State contributes coal severance tax and
interest money from the general fund . The interest is contributed monthly and the severance tax is contributed quarterly .  Based on those
assumptions , the PERS' fiduciary net posrtion was projected to be adequate to make all the projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through the year 2 12 1 . Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was appl ied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determ ine the total pension liabil ity. No municipa l bond rate was incorporated in the discount
rate .

Sheriffs Retirement System (SRS} 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension l iabi l ity was 7.65%. The projection of cast, flows used to determine the discot1nt rate 
assumed that contributions from participating plan members and employers will be made based on the Board's funding pol icy, which 
established the contractually requtred rates under the Montana Code Annotated. Based on those assumptions, the Plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be adequate to make all the projected future benefit payments of current plan members through the year 21 18 .  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of  return on pension p lan investments was appl ied to all periods of  projected benefit payments to 
determ ine the total pension l iabi l ity . A municipal bond rate was not incorporated in the discount rate. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The fol lowing presents the employer's proportionate share of the PERS and SRS net pension l iabi lity calculated using the discount rate 
of 7 .65%, as well as what the net pension l iabi l rty would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that rs 1 .00% lower (6.65%) or 
1 .00% higher (8.65%) than the current rate . 

Net pension liability-PE RS 
Net pension liabifity-SRS 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

$ 

1 %  Decrease 
(6 .65%) 

4,7 1 2, 833 
2,028,61 1 

Current Discount 1 %  Increase 
Rate (7.65%) (8.65%) 

$ 3,258,699 $ 2,064,623 
1 , 1 1 4,703 366,289 

Plan Description. The government provides postemployment health care benefits in accordance with Montana Code Annotated , Title 2, 
Chapter 18 ,  Section, 704 to the following employees and dependents who elect to continue coverage and pay administratively 
established premiums: ( 1 }  employees and dependents who reti re under appl icable retirement provis ions, and (2) surviving dependents of 
deceased employees . Retirement elig ib i l ity is determi ned based on the min imum of ( 1 )  reaching age 50 with at least 5 years of 
membership service or (2) reaching 25 years of membership at a ny age. The OPEB plan , Is a sing le-employer defined benefit plan 
adm inistered by the government. The government has not created a trust to accumulate assets to assist in covering the defined benefit 
plan costs, and covers these costs when they come due. The above described OPEB plan does not provide a stand�alone financial 
report. 

Benefits provided: The government provides healthca re insu rance benefits for reti rees and their dependents upon reaching the age and 
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service yec1rs defined in 2-18-704, MCA. The benefit terms require that eligible retirees cover 100 percent of the health insurance 
premlums. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Tenns. As of June 30, 2019, the following employees were covered by benefit terms: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 
Inactive employees or beneficiaries entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active plan members 

Total OPEB Liability 

7 

92 

99 

The total OPEB liability of $1,284,162 was measured as of June 30, 2018, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2018. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs. The total OPEB liability in the actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs. applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Salary increases 

Discount rate 

Healthcare costs trend rates 

Participation 

l'v1ortality 

June 30, 2018 

Entry age normal funding. 

4% 

3.87% (based on the 20 year municipal bond index). 

7.0% for 2019, decreasing 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of 3,8% 
for 2075 and years later. 

45% of future retirees are assumed to elect medical coverage. 

For PERS and SRS: RP 2000 Healthy Combined l'v1ortality Table 
projected to 2015 using Scale AA with no collar adjustment for males 
or females. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 20, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the age 65 per capita claims cost for the 
period of July 1, 2017 through June 2018. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Changes in the total OPEB liability were as follows: 

Total OPES liability - beginning of year 

Service cost 
Interest on the total OPEB liability 
Benefits payments 

Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPES liability - end of year 

$ 1,154,672 

112,525 
46,842 

(29,877) 

129,490 

1,284,162 

Changes of benefit terms reflect revised health care trend rates and retiree contribution increases based on revised projects and future 
increases to retirees contributions to match health care cost trend rates. Changes of assumptions and other lnputs reflect a change in 
status, trend, discount and other inputs. 
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the employer's total OPES liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 3.87%, as well as what the total OPES liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00% 
lower (2.87%) or 1.00% higher (4.87%) 1han the current rate. 

Total OPES liability $ 

1% Decrease 
(2.87%) 

1,394,662 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(3.87%) 

$ 1,284,162 

1% Increase 
(4.87%) 

$ 1,183,320 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the total OPEB liability, as well 
as what the total OPES liability would be rf it were calculated usin_g healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.0% 
decreasing to 2.8%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.0% decreasing to 4.8%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Total OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 
(6.0% 

decreasing to 
2.8%) 

$ 1,125,306 

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rates 

(7.0% 
decreasing to 

3.8%) 

$ 1,284,162 

1% Increase 
(8.0% 

decreasing to 
4.8%) 

$ 1,471,954 

OPES Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPES 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the government recognized OPES expense of $159,367. As of June 30, 2019, the government 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPES from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and 
actual economic experience $ 48,315 $ 

Changes in actuatial assumptions 11,307 

$ 48,315 $ 11,307 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from the government's contributions subsequent to the, measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources will be recognlzed in OPEB expense as follows: 

Future Implementation of GASS Pronouncements 

Year Ended 
June 30: 

2020 $ 
2021 
2022 
2023 

2024 
Thereafter 

The GASS has issued the following pronouncements: 

3,743 
3,743 
3,743 
3,743 
3,743 

18,293 

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2018, 

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
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2019, 

GASS Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 

GASS Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests an amendment of GASS Statements No. 14 and No. 61. The requirements of this 
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. 

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning 
after December 15, 2020. 

39 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
General Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES 
Taxes/assessments 
Fees and fines 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Public health 
Social and economic services 
Cultl.lre and recreation 
Housing and community development 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other fihancing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

See notes to required supplementary information, 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final 

$ 2,008,244 $ 2,008,244 
115,000 115,000 

22,500 22,500 
540,627 540,627 
380,544 380,544 

7,500 7,500 
60 410 60,410 

3,134,825 .3,134.825 

2,786,458 2,786,458 
136,483 136,483 
120,169 120,169 
435,995 435,995 
173,875 173,875 

500 500 
48,954 48,954 

9,552 9,552 
3,711,986 3,7111 ,986 

{577, 1 e1l {577,161) 

465,760 465,760 
{55,950) {55,950) 

409,810 409,810 

$ {1671351) $ (167
1
351) 

Actual 
Amounts, Budget to 
Budgetary GAAP 

Basls Differences 

$ 2,040,400 $ 
115,765 

35,050 
504,225 67,476 
435,114 

45,861 
68 340 

3,244.755 67.476 

2,TT9,362 37,389 
132,602 3,036 
113,232 13,995 
430,493 6,403 
184,788 2,692 

424 3,961 
53,954 

6,289 
3,701,144 67,476 

{456,389) 

469,327 
(53,071) 

416,256 

(40,133) 

840
1
189 

$ 800
1
056 $ 

Actual 
Amounts, 

GAAP Basis 

$ 2,040,400 
115,765 
35,050 

571,701 
435,114 

45,861 
68,340 

3,312,231 

2,816,751 
135,638 
127,227 
436,896 
187,480 

4,385 

53,954 
6,289 

3,768,620 

{456,389} 

469,327 
,{53,071) 

416,256 

(40,133) 

840,189 

$ 800
1
056 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Road Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual 
Origfnal Final Amounts 

REVENUES 
Tal(es/assessmer,ts $ 481,967 $ 481,967 $ 479,207 
Ucenses and permits 15,800 15,800 12,919 
Intergovernmental 577,988 577,988 700,954 
Charges for services 176 
Miscellaneous 3,701 

Total revenues 1,075,755 1,075,755 1,196,957 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public works 1,227,281 1,235,381 1,345,159 
Debt service: 

Principal 44,934 44,934 24,156 
ln1erest and other charges 12,376 12,376 6,664 

Capital outlay 25,000 25,000 
Total expenditures 1,309,591 1,317,691 1,375,979 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures {233,836) {241,936) {179,022) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
lnsufance recoveries 240 
Sale of capital assets 725 
Transfers in 464,871 464,871 520,836 
Transfers out (207,116} (207, 11 sl !148, 758}

Total other financing sources (uses) 257,755 257,755 373
1
043

Net change in fund balance $ 23,919 $ 15,8-19 194,021

Fund balance - beginning 21,661 

Fund balance - ending $ 215,68'2 

See notes to required supplementary information. 41 



PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
Public Safety Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

REVENUES 
Taxes/assessments 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public safety 
Capi1al outlay 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
e.xpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Insurance recoveries 
Sale of capital assets 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change In fund balance 

Fund balance - beginning 

Fund balance - ending 

See notes to required supplementary information, 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original 

$ 1,415,864 
500 

208,585 
91,500 

6,000 

1,722.449 

2,265,397 
249,000 

2,514,397 

(791,948) 

5,000 
742,411 
(51,200) 

696,211 

Final 

$ 1,415,864 
500 

208,585 
91,500 

6,000 

1,722,449 

2,406,253 
249,000 

2,655,253 

(932,804) 

5,000 
742,411 
(51,200) 

696,211 

$ {95,737) $ (236,593) 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 1,407,380 
3,605 

208,604 
108,895 

4,288 

1,732,772 

2,264,183 
68,127 

2,332,310 

(599,538) 

6,078 
96.458 

742,864 
(51,200} 

794,200 

194,662 

727,039 

$ 921,701 
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
PILT Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Budgeted Amounts 

Actual 
Original Final Amounts 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental $ 1,644,000 $ 1,644,000 $ 1,469,004 
Investment earnings 4,000 4,000 11,160 
Mlscellaneous 900 900 5,553 

Total revenues 1.648,900 1,648,900 1.485,717 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 52,250 57,750 53,822 
Public safety 303,197 303,197 330,910 
Public works 100 100 68 
Social and economic services 5,000 

Debt service: 
Prlnctpal 24,697 24,697 24,697 
Interest and other charges 4,795 4,795 4,795 

Total expenditures 385
1
039 390,539 419,292 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 1,263,861 1,258,361 1,066,425 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out {1,004,150) (1,004

1
1502 (975,309) 

Total other financing uses (\004,150} {1,004,150i {975,309) 

Net change in fund balance $ 259,711 $ 254,211 91.116 

Fund balance - beginning 880,013 

Fundba�nce-en�ng '$ 951,129 

See notes to required supplementary information. 43 
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

BUDGETARY INFORMATION 

Money may not be disbursed, expended or obligated except pursuant to an appropriation for which working 
capital is or will be available. The final budget is legally enacted by the governing body by the first Thursday after 
the first Tuesday in September or within 30 calendar days of receiving certified taxable values from the 
department of revenue, after holding public hearings as required by state statute, Budgeted fund 
expenditures/expenses are limited by state law to budgeted amounts. Budgets may be amended for 
circumstances described by state law. The budgeted amounts as shown in the financial statements are as 
originally adopted or as revised by legal budget transfers and amendments, if applicable. All approp,iations, 
except for construction-in-progress, lapse at year-end. The government does not utilize a formal encumbrance 
accounting system. 

The difference between budget and actual results for the general fund are related to the on-behalf pension 
revenues and expenditures. 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES AND SHERIFFS' RETIREMl;NT SYSTEMS OF MONTANA 
For the Years Ended June 30, 

Public Employees Retirement System: 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contributions $ 291,798 $ 217,482 $ 214,614 $ 212,925 
Contributions In relation to the contractually 
required contributions 291,798 217,482 214,614 212,925 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Employer's covered payroll $ 2,810,418 $ 2,567,692 $ 2,564,017 $ 2,421,961 
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 10.38% 8.47% 8,37% 8.79% 

Sheriffs' Retirement System: 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Contractually required contributions $ 153,597 $ 153,717 $ 114,388 $ 116,115 
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contributions 153,597 153,717 114,388 116,115 

ContrlbuUon deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Employer's covered payroll $ 1,1-71,155 $ 1, 150,52.3 $ 1,130,869 $ 1,120,309 
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 13.12% l3.36% 10.12% 10.36% 

Schedule is intended to show infonnation for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available .. 

See notes to required supplementary Information-pension plan Information. 

2015 

$ 209,627 

209,627 

$ 

$ 2,388,307 
8.78% 

2015 

$ 110,946 

110,946 

$ 

$ 1,093,721 
10.14% 
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SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES AND SHERIFFS' RETIREMENT SYSTEMS OF MONTANA 
For the Years Ended June 30, 

Public Employees RetTrement System: 20t9 2018 2017 2016 

Employer's proportion of the net pension liability 0.1561% 0.2067% 0.2022% 0.2047% 
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension 
liabil!ty associated with the employer $ 3,258,699 -$ 4,025,616 $ 3.444,108 $ 2,860,745 

State of Montana's proportionate share. of the net 
pension liability associated with the e111ployer 1,095,427 57,927 42,083 35,139 

Total $ 4,354,126 $ 4,083,543 $ 3,486,191 $ 2,895,884 

Employer's covered payroll $ 2,567,692 $ 2,564,017 $ 2,421,961 $ 2,388,307 

Employer's proport1onate share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 1·26,91% 157.00% 142,20% 119,78% 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 73.47% 73.75% 74.71% 78.40% 

Sheriffs' Retirement Ststem: 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Employer's proportion of the he! pension liability 1,4829% 1.5115% 1.5870% 1.6073% 
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension 
-liability associated with the employer $ 1,114,703 $ 1,150,173 $ 2,787,991} $ 1,549,455 

State of Montana's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability associated with the employer 

Total $ 1,114,703 $ 1,150,173 $ 2,787,990 $ 1,549,455 

Employer's covered pa.yroll $ 1,150,523 $ 1,130,869 $ 1,120,309 $ 1,093,721 

Employer's proportionate share of the net .pension 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 96.89% 101.71% 248,86% 141,67% 
Plan trduc!ary net position as a percentage of the, 
total pension liablllty 82.68% 81.30% 63,00% 75.40% 

Schedule Is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See notes to required supplementary information-pension plan information. 

2015 

0.2242% 

$ 2,793,286 

34,110 

$ 2,827,396 

$ 2,559,683 

111,22% 

79.87% 

2015 

1.5860% 

$ 660,064 

$ 660,064 

$ 1,025,736 

64.35% 

87-24%
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Public Employees Retirement System 

Changes of Benefit Terms: 

The following changes to the plan provision were made as identified: 

2017: 

Working Retiree Limitations - for PERS: 

• If a PERS retiree returns as an independent contractor to what would othetwise be PERS-covered
employment, general contractor overhead costs are excluded from PERS working retiree limitations.

Refunds: 

• Terminating members eligible- to retire may, in lieu of receiving a monthly retirement benefit, refund their
accumulated contributions in a lump sum.

• Terminating members with accumulated contributions between $200 and $1,000 who wish to rollover their
refund must do so within 90 days of termination of service.

• Trusts, estates, and charitable organizations lfsted as beneficiaries are entitled to receive only a lump-sum
payment.

Interest Credited to Member Accounts: 

• The interest credited to member accounts increased from 0.25% to 0.77%.

Lump-sum Payouts: 

• Lump-sum payouts in all systems are limited to the member's accumulated contributions rate rather than the
present value of the member's benefit.

Disabled PERS Defined Contribution (DC) Members: 

• PERS members hired after July 1, 2011 have a normal retirement age of 65. PERS DC members hired after
July 1, 2011 who became disabled were previously only eligible for a disability benefit until age 65. Effective
July 1, 2017, these indMduals will be eligible for a disability benefit until they reach 70, thus ensuring the same
5-year time period available to PERS DC disabled members hired prior to July 1, 2011 who have a normal
retirement age of 60 and are eligible for a disability benefit until age 65.

Sheriffs' Retirement System 

Changes of Benefit Terms: 

The following changes to the plan provisions were made as identified: 

2017: 

·1, Increase in SRS Employee and Employer Contributions, effective July 1, 2017:
• SRS employee contributions increase 1.25% from 9.245% to 10.495%.
• SRS employer additional contributions increase 3%, from 0,58% to 3.58%, for a total employer contributions

rate of 13.115%.
• SRS employee contributions will return to 9.245% and SRS employer contributions will return to 9.535% when

reducing the employee contribution and terminating the additional employer contributions will not cause the
amortization period to exceed 25 years.

Second Retirement Benefit - for SRS: 

1. Applies to retirement system members who return on or after July 1, 2017 to active. service covered by the system
from which they retired.

2. If the member works more than 480 hours in a calendar year and accumulates less than 5 years of service credit
before terminating again, the member:
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

• is not awarded service credit for the perlod of reemployment;
• is refunded the accumulated contributions associated with the period of reemployment:
• starting the first month following termination of service, receives the same retirement benefit previously paid

to the member; and
• does not accrue post-retirement benefit adjustments during the 1erm of reemployment but receives a

Guaranteed Annual Benefit Adf ustment (GABA) 1n January immediately following second retirement.

3. If the member works more than 480 hours in a calendar year and accumulates at least 5 years of service credit
before terminating again, the member:
• Is awarded service credit for the period of reemployment;
• Starting the first month following termination of service, receives:

I. The same retirement benefit previously paid to the member, and
II. A second retirement benefit for the period of reemployment calculated based on the laws in effect as of

the member's rehire date: and
• Does not accrue post-retirement benefit adjustments during the term of reemployment but receives a GABA:

I. On the initial retirement benefit in January immediately following second retirement, and
IJ. On the second retirement benefit starting tn January after receiving that benefit for at least 12 months.

4. A member who returns to covered service is not eligible for a disability benefit.

Refunds: 

• Terminating members eligible to tetire may, in lieu of receiving a monthly retirement benefit, refund their
accumulated contributions in a lump sum.

• Terminating members with accumulated contributions between $200 and $1,000 who wish to rollover their
refund must do so within 90 days of termination of service.

• Trusts, estates, and charitable organizations listed as beneficiaries are entitled to receive only a lump-sum
payment.

Interest credited to member accounts: 

• Effective July 1, 2017, the interest rate credited to member accounts increased from 0.25% to 0.77%.

Lump-sum payouts: 

• Effective July 1, 2017, lump-sum payouts in all systems are limited to the member's accumulated contributions
rate than the present value of the member's benefit.

Changes in actuarial assumptions and other inputs: 

Method and assumptions used in calculations of actuarially determined contributions: 

Acturial cost method 

Amortization m ethod 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Entry age 

Level percentage of pay, open 

30 years 

4 year smoothed market 

2.75% 

3.50% 

7.65%, net of pension plan 

investment expense and including 
inflation 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT 

BENEFITS (OPES) LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 

Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning of year 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Differences in experience 
Changes in assumption 
Benefit payments 

Total OPEB liability - end of year 

Covered-employee payrofl 
Total OPES liability as a percentage of covered-employee 
payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other 
Inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount rate of 
each period. The followlng are the discount rates used in each 
period·. 

Differences in experience measure the expected versus 
actual claims experience. 

2019 

$ 1,154,672 

112,525 
46,842 

{29,877) 

$ 1,284,162 

$ 4,143,314 

30.99% 

3.87% 

2018 

$ 987,179 

110,848 
40,328 
53,200 

(12,449)
{24,434} 

$ 1,154,672 

$ 3,983,956 

28.98% 

3.87% 

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASS Statement No. 75. 

Schedules are intended to show informal/on for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 

become available. 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Federal Grantor/Pass•throu9h 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title 

U.S. Dei;,artme□I QI Ttaos11orta!ion: 
Direct Program: 

Airport Improvement Program 

Tola! direc1 pmgram 

Passed through ttie Montana Depar\m!!nt of Transpor1alloo: 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

20,106 

Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transtt Progfl 20,509 
Formula Grants for Rural Areas and Tribal Transit Progn 20.509 

Total pass,through program 

Total U.S. Depanment of Transportatfon 

U.S Department of Jtisl1ce: 
Direct Program: 

Public Safety Partnership and Commun�y Policing 
Grants 16.710 

P�blie-Safe\y Part11ersh(p a�d Ccmmu�ity Policing 
Grants 16.710 

Subtotal 

Passed through lhe Montane Board cf Crime Control, 
Crime Vlcilm Asslstartce 16.575 

Subtotal 

Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 
Violanoe Against Wcmen Formula Grants 16.588 

Subtotal 

Passect through Gallatin Coullty: 
Edward Byrne Memonal Just[ce Assistance 
Grant ProgFam 16.738 

Passed through the Montana Board cl Crime Control: 
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 

Grant Program 16,738 
Subtotal 

Sublotal pass-through pro_grams 

TO!al U.S. Department of Justice 

!.! S 1:l!i!11a!lm1mt of Homeland Secur��: 
Passed through the Monla)1e Department of Mll�ary 

Affarrs • O!saster & Emergency Services Oivisig•n: 
Homeland Security Grant Pro_grnm 97.067 
Homeland Sec�nty Grant Program 97.067 
Hgmeland Secunty Grant Program 97.067 

Subtotal 

Dlsesler Grants, Public Assistartc8 (Preslderitially 
Declared Disasters) �7.036 

Disaster Grants • Public Assistance (Presldenttally 
Oeclared Dlsasters) 97.036 

Disaster Grants • Pubnc Assistance (Pres1denllally 
Declared DlsestersJ 97.036 

Subtotal 

Emergency Management Pe�mmance Grants 97.042 
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 

Sublotal 

Total U.S. Depanment ofHomelal\d Security 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Award/P1:1ss• Program or 
through Granto�s Award 

Number Amount 

DOT·FA18NM·2052 $ 152,381 

'109518 59,924 
110043 60,000 

2017UMWX003B 125,000 

2016UMWX0184 125,000 

15-VBB-92151 47,785 

17-W03-92108 38,892 

18-W03-92243 39,846 

2019-077 27,634 

16-GP01-92276 9,120 

EMW-2016-SS-00021 115,863 
EMW-2018-SS-00021 62,679 
EMW-2015-SS-0000S 172,000 

FEMA·440S·OR-MT 89,101 

FEMA•4437·DR-MT 116.732 

POMC-PL-0B·MT-2015--005 18,749 

EMD-2017 ,EP-00003 37,500 
EMO-2018-EP-00005-S01 38,433 

Balance 
July t, 2018 

$ 

(16,392) 

(16,392) 

\16.392) 

(9,551) 
(9,551) 

(10,514) 
(10,51'4) 

(9,523) 

(9,523) 

(B.560) 
(8,560) 

(28,597) 

!38,148) 

(55,383) 
(55,383) 

(1,67�, 

[1,875) 

(14,806) 

(14,886) 

(72,144) 

ReturRed lo 
Grantor/ Balance 

Receipts Expenditures Other June -30, 2019 

$ 31,410 $ 51,040 $ $ (19,630) 

31,410 51,040 (19,630) 

2.8,096 (11,704) 
47,498 80,000 (12,502) 

75,594 80,000 p 1,704) (12,502) 

107,004 111,040 p 1,704) (32,132) 

i0,191 20,006 (9,815) 

41.863 41,927 (9,615) 
52,054 61,933 (19,430) 

10,514 
10,514 

9,523 
32.�47 39,846 (7,699) 
41,670 39,846 .(7.699) 

27,634 27,634 

6,560 
36,194 27,634 

88,378 67,480 (7,699) 

140.432 129.413 (27,129! 

13,360 77,568 (64,208) 
50,811 50,811 
55,383 

119.554 128,379 (64,208) 

2,561 89,101 (86,540) 

(1,875) 
2,581 89,101 (�8,415) 

14,886 
26,855 35,775 (8,920) 
41,741 35,775 !B,920) 

163,856 253,255 (1131,543) 
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federal Grantor/Pass-through 
Grantor/Program or Cluster Trtla 

1,!,S. Da11artmen! of tl!li!llb alll! l::i�[Ili!rl fi!l[Y[Q!al�; 
Passed through Iha Montana Department 

of Public Haallh and Human Services: 
Maternal and Child Health Services 

Block Grant to the States 
Maternal and Ch1!d Heallh Services 

Block Grant lo the States 
Subtotal 

lmrnunlzalion Cooperative Agreements 
lmmunii::atlon Cooperatlve Agreements 

Subtotal 

Hospital Preparedness Program (HPP) and Public 
Health Emergency Preparedness (PHEP) 
Aligned Cooper-alive Agreements 
Health Emergency Preparedness. (PHEP) 
Allgned Coopera11ve Agreements 

Subto!al 

Passed through Rocky Mountain Area IV Agency on Aging: 
Nallonal Family Caregiver Support T1Ue Ill, Part E 

Subtotal 

J>assed through the Gallattn County Health Department: 
Cancer Prevention and Control Pro9rams for State, 

Territorial and Tribal Organizations 
Sublotal 

Organized Approaches to l�craased Colorectal Cancer 
Screening 

Subto1al 

Tolal U.S. Departmen1 of Heallh and Human Services 

u.s Department or the lntertor: 
Dfrect Programs; 

Cooperative Research and Traln1ng Programs-
Resources o! the National Perl< Syslem 

Total U.S, Department of Hie lnlerior 

U,S Department of Agriculture: 
Dlreci Programs: 

Schools and Roads - Grants to States 
Subtotal direct programs 

'Passed through the Montana Dep<lrtment of Adm101s1ration: 
Schools and Roads - Grants 10 States 

Subtotal pass-through programSa 

Subtotal 

Passed through the Montana Oepa11ment of Public HeaJth 
end Human Services: 

WIC Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 
Women, Infants, and Children 

WIC Spec1al Supplemental Nutrition Program for 
Women, Infants, and Children 

Subtotal 

Passed through lhe Montana Department of Natural 
Resources and Conservation: 

Cooperative Forestry Assislance 
Subtotal 

PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

Federal 
OFOA 

Number 

93,994 

93.994 

93,268 
93,268 

93,074 

93,074 

93,052 

.93.898 

93,B00 

15.945 

10,666 

10_665 

10,557 

10,557 

10.664 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Award/Pass- Program or 
through Granto(s Award 

Number Amount 

19-07-5-01-034-0 18,121 

18-07-5-01-034-0 12,897 

19-07-4,,31-131-0 8,866 
17-07-4-31-131-0 12,699 

18-07-6-11-037-0 34,53a 

19-07-6-11-037-0 42,938 

1019-004-015 3,300 

19-07-3-01-007-0 7,920 

19-07-3-01-007-0 2,700 

P15AC00153 45,115 

16-PA-11011100-07'2 5,000 

Nlf', 284,684 

1 B-07-5-21-032-0 40,728 

19-07-S-21-032-0 46,218 

VFA-19-340 8.500 

Balance 
July 1, 2016 

j5,159) 
\5,159) 

!2,117) 
(2,117) 

[7.770) 

{7,770) 

(15,046) 

(20,565! 

(20,565) 

14,483 

14,483 

14-,483 

(6,542) 

(6,542) 

Ret\lrned 10 
Grantorl Balance 

Recaipls Expenditures Other June 30, 2019 

8,060 13,308 561 (4,687) 

5,159 
13,219 13,308 561 (4,687) 

6,650 8,679 (187) (2,216) 
� 117 
8.767 8,679 (187) (2.218) 

7.770 

32,201 31.1'13 9,677 10,135 
39,971 31,143 9,677 10,735 

3,300 3,300 
3,300 "3,300 

6,216 5,216 
5,216 5,216 

1.ne 1,778 
T.778 1,778 

72,251 63.424 10.051 3,632 

20,565 

20,565 

2,061 (2,061! 
2,0!11 (2,061) 

284,684 287,053 12,114 
284,684 287,063 12,114 

284,684 289,114 10,053 

17.71,3 7.902. 3.269 

20,237 25,372 (1,731) i6,866) 
37.950 33,274 (1,731) (J,597) 

8,500 \B,500) 
8,500 (8,500) 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Federal AWsrq/Pass• 
Federal Orentor/Pasa-through CFDA through Granto(s 

______ G_ra_11_1o_rl_P_ro_9 ___ ra_m ___ o_r_C_l_ust_ar_T_ll_ls _____ �----N __ u_m_b_a_r __ _ 

Passed through Iha Montana Department or Agriculture: 
Forest Health Protection 

Subtotal 

Total U.S. Department or Agricullure 

Total Federal Awards 

10.680 2018·8D7X 

Program or 
Award 

Amounl 

24,742 

Balance 
July 1, 2018 

7,941 

S (164,354) 

Notes to Schedule or Expenditures of Federal Awards 

NOTE 1 • BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

Receipts 

13,159 
13,159 

335.793 

s 839,901 

Returned to 
Grentor/ 

Expendttures Other 

18,540 

18,540 

349,428 (1,731! 

$ 905,560 s (3,364) 

Balanco 
June 30, 2019 

!5, 381! 
(5,3B1l 

(7,4251 

s (224,397) 

The accompanying Schedule of· E�pand�ures of Federal Awards (the schedule) Includes the federal award activllv ol Iha government under programs of the federal government for Iha yuar 
ended June 30, 2019. The Information In this schedule Is presented in @ccordance wtth the requirements of Tille 2 U.S. Code of the Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Admlnlsl.ra/lve 

Requirements, Co�, Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). B11eause the schedu111 presents only a .selected portion or the operations ot th11 government, 
tt Is 0Qt intended lo end dQ8S not present the financial position or changes in net posiUon or the government, 

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on lhe schedule ere reported on the modified accrual basis ol eccoun�ng. Such expendttures are recogniied following the cost prtnclples i.onlalned In the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein cartaln types or expenditures ere not anoweble or are Qmlted as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the schedule represent adjustments or c1edlts made I� the 
normal course or t,uslnes,; to amounts reported as expenditures In prior years. 

NOTE 3 · INDIRECT COST RATES 
The government ha& elected not to use the 10 percent de minimus Indirect cost rate as allowed under the Unifonn Guidance. 
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ERNEST J, OLNESS, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUD/TfNG STANDARDS 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Park County 
Livingston, Montana 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Park County, Montana (the government) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the government's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 13, 2019. The report included an explanatory paragraph to describe a change in accounting principles. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfonning our audit of the financial statements, we considered the government's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropdate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the government's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the government's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for 1he limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or 
slgnificant detici'encies may exist that have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions. to prevent. or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness 
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-001 through 2019-003 to be 
material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-004 and 2019-005 to be significant deficiencies. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the government's financial statements are free from material rnfsstatement, 
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards 
and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2019-004 through 2019-006. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND 
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (CONTINUED) 

The Government's Response to Findings 

The government's response to the findings identified in 01,ir audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. The government's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance_ 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

0/µs,; � Assie;J:cs
1 

Pt_ 
Billings, Montana 
December 13, 2019 
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6RNl!ST J, LNESS, CPA 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Park County 
Livingston, Montana 

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal Program 

We have audited Park County, Montana.'s {the government) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the government's major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2019. The government's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Manaqemenrs Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the government's major federal programs based on our audit of 
the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U,S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrat{ve Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance), Those standards and the Unifonn Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with tl'le types of complranoe requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the government's comRliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our qualified and unmodified opinions on compliance for major federal 
programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the government's compliance. 

Basis for Qualified Opinian on Disaster Grants - Public Assistance {Presidenriallv Declared Disasters) 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the government did not comply with the following 
requirements: 

Finding No. CFDA No. Program (or Cluster) Name Compliance Reciuirement 

2019-008 97.036 Disaster Grants - Public Assistance Allowable Costs/Cost Principles 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the government to comply with the requirements applicable to that 
program. 

Quallfied Opinion on Disaster Gr nts - Public Assistance (Presirlentiallv Decfarocl Disasters) 

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the government complied, in all 
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on Disaster 
Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH 
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE (CONTINUED) 

Unmodified Opinion on the Other Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the government complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that 
could have a direct and material effect on its other major federal program identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and .questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

The government's response to the noncompliance findings identified In our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs, The government's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the government is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the government's 
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compllance. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the government's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a 
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been Identified. We did Identify 
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as 
items 2019-007 and 2019-008 that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

The government's response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The government's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Oniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable 
for any other purpose. 

O/JJS5 � A�1dfef.
1 
Pl_ 

Billings, Montana 
December 13, 2019 

56 



PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) Identified?

• Significant deficiencies identified?

Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weaknesses identified?

• Significant deficiencies identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs 

✓ yes no ---

✓ yes
---

none reported 

✓ yes no 

✓ yes
---

no 

___ yes ✓ none reported

Qualified for Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 
Unmodified for Schools and Roads - Grants to States 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance 2 CFR section 200.516(a)? 

Major programs: 

CFDA Numbers 

97.036 

10.665 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B 
programs? 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2019-001. SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

✓ yes no 
---

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 

Schools and Roads - Grants to States 

$750,000 

___ yes ✓ no 

Criteria: Duties should be segregated to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are handled appropriately. 

Condition: There is a lack of segregation of duties among personnel. 

Effect: Tr;:msactions could be mishandled. 

Cause: There are a limited number of personnel for certain functions. 

Recommendation: The duties should be separated as much as possible, and alternative controls should be used to 
compensate for lack of separation. The governing board should provide some of these controls. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with this finding and will adhere to 
the attached corrective action plan. 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

2019-002. INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Criteria: As part of its internal control structure, it is the county's responsibility to prepare its financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Further, local governments in Montana are required to adhere to 
the accounting and financial reporting standards adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Condition: During the course of our audit engagement, we proposed adjustments and changes to the financial statements 
and footnotes that were not identified as a result of Park County's existing internal controls. Individually and in the 
aggregate, the adjustments and changes were material to the financial statements. 

Cause: Revenue and expenditure cutoff procedures were ineffective, deferred inflows and deferred outflows related to 
GASB Statement No. 75 were not adjusted, interest earnings were misclassified and fund balance in the financial 
statements was not classified correctly. Additionally, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards was not prepared in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

Effect: These control deficiencies could result in material misstatements to the financial statements that would not be 
prevented or detected. 

Recommendation: We recommend a thorough review of the County's financial and accounting reporting procedures be 
conducted; specifically, year�end reporting and financial statement preparation. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with this finding and w1II adhere to the 
attached corrective action plan. 

2019-003. JUSTICE OF THE PEACE TIME PAY ACCOUNTING 

Criteria: The Montana Supreme Court Administrator's Office Full Court Accounting Res!)onsibility & Compliance Guidelines 
that have been adopted by the Courts of Limited Jurisdiction Automation Committee outlines court personnel accounting 
responsibilities. The guidelines require court personnel to develop and maintain a system of internal controls to safeguard 
court resources, check the accuracy of clerical entries, promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence to 
prescribed accounting procedures. Effective internal control over time pay accounts requires a reconciliation of the monthly 
time pay activity to the beginning and ending time pay balances to be prepared to determine that all transactions have been 
recorded properly and to discover errors and irregularities. Further, a formal time pay reconciliation is a useful tool in 
evaluating and monitoring outstanding time pay balances. 

Condition: The Justice of the Peace office does not perform a monthly time pay account reconciliation. 

Cause: Unknown. 

Effect: Not reconciling the time pay accounts on a monthly basis means that errors or other problems might not be 
recognized and resolved on a timely basis. 

Recommendation: The Justice of the Peace office should prepare a fonnal reconciliation of time pay activity to the beginning 
and ending lime pay balances on a monthly basis. Once completed, the reconciliation should be reviewed and approved by 
the Justice of the Peace. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with this finding and will adhere to the 
attached correctlve action plan. 

Auditor's response in accordance with GAO Government Auditing Standards-paragraph 4.38: The planned corrective action 
related to time pay accounting does not adequately address the auditors' recommendation. The planned corrective action 
does not describe how all transactions related to a defendant's time pay will be accounted for to ensure they have been 
recorded properly and the methods that will be used to discover errors or irregularities. 

2019-004. FINAL BUDGET DOCUMENT TIMELY SUBMISSION 

Criteria: A local government shall submit a complete copy of the final budget together with a statement of tax levies to the 
Department of Administration by the later of October 1 or 60 days after receipt of taxable values from the Department of 
Revenue. The local government shall use standard budget forms prescribed by the Department of Administration or may

use an alternative budget format acceptable to the Department. (Section 7-6-4003, MCA) 

Condition: For fiscal year 2019, the certified taxable values from the Department of Revenue were received August 2, 2018: 
however, the budget document was not filed with the Department of Administration untll October 15, 2019. 
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PARK COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Cause: Unknown, 

Effect: Noncompliance with Section 7-6-4003, MCA. 

Recommendation: The budget document should be filed within the timelines established by 7-6-4003, MCA. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with 1his finding and Will adhere to the 
attached correctfve action plan. 

2019-005. RESTRICTIONS ON DONATIONS 

Criteria: Per Section 7-7-2103, MCA, no County must ever give or loan its credit in aid of or make any donation or grant, by 
subsidy or otherwise. to any individual, association, or corporatron. 

Condition: The County dona1ed $15,000 to the Park County Community Foundation, a non-profit corporation. 

Cause: Unknown. 

Effect: Non-compliance with state statutes. 

Recommendation: The County should discontinue the practice of making donations that are prohibited by Section 7-7-2103, 
MCA. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with this finding and will adhere to the 
attached corrective action plan 

2019•006 DISASTER GRANTS- PUl3LIC ASSISTANCE (PRESIDENTIALLY DECLARED DISASTERS) 

Criteria: The cost principles in 2 CFR part 200, subpart E (Cost Principles). prescribe the cost accounting requirements 
associated with the administration of federal awards. Direct costs are those costs that can be identified specifically with a 
particular final cost objective, such as a federal award, or other internally or externally funded activity, or that can be directly 
assigned to such activities relatively easily with a high degree of accuracy. 

Condition: Program expenditures were not separately identified in the general ledger for the Project Worksheets (PW). 

Questioned Costs: None 

Cause: Unknown. 

Effect Non-cornpliance with Federal costs principles. 

Recommendation: Program expenditures should be separately identified in the general ledger. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The government agrees with this finding and Will adhere to the 
attached corrective action plan. 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

2019-007. ALL MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 

Finding 2019--002 applies to these major programs, 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

2019-008. DISASTER GRANTS- PUBLIC ASSISTANCE {PRESIDENTIALLY DECLARED DISASTERS) 

Finding 2019-006 applies to this major program, 
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PARK COUNTY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2018-001. SEGREGATION OF DUTIES 

Status: This finding is unresolved and is repeated as finding 2019-001 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

2018-002. INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

Status: This finding is unresolved and is repeated as finding 2019-002 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

2018-003. JUSTICE OF THE PEACE TIME PAY ACCOUNTING 

Status: This finding is unresolved and is repeated as finding 2019-003 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR 
FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

2018-004. ALL MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 

Finding 2018-002 applies to these major programs 
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20 1 9-00 1 . SEGREGATION OF DUTI ES 

PARK COU NTY 
CORRECTIVE. ACTION PLAN 

For the Year Ended June 30, 201 9 

F IND INGS - F I NANCIAL STATEM ENT AUDIT 

Name of Contact person: Commrssion 

Corrective Action : The duties will be separated as m uch as possible and alternative controls wi l l  be used to compensate 
for lack of separation. The govern ing board will continue to be involved in provid ing some of ,these controls . 

Proposed Completion Date: The governing board wi l l  implement the above procedure immediately . 

201 9-002 . INTERNAL CONTROL STRUCTURE OVER FINANC IAL R EPORT ING 

Name of Contact person: Finance Director 

Correct ive Action: Park County continues to work on better preparing and present ing year end data. Although every effort 
was made to create accurate financial statements, the expenditure cutoff information related to retainage which was not 
clear in the invoices, so invoices will require closer review. GASB 75 is in its second year of adopt ion and the presentation 
is sti lt relatively new, and interest was not noted as a problem rn the past even though the handling was the same in prior 
years. The fund balance classification was corrected following the auditors' guidance. The errors were addressed with 
assistance from the auditors, and procedures wil l be updated. 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

20 1 9-003. JUSTICE OF THE PEACE TIME PAY ACCOUNTING 

Name of Contact Person : Park County Justice of the Peace 

Corrective Action : None of the courts in Montana perfonn monthly time pay reconciliation .  Some smaller Courts do spread 
stieets or log books that basically do the same thing as fu ll court case management system does but puts all the 
information on one page. The courts are to reconci le the bank statement in a timely matter every month (which this court 
does) ,  financial issues/errors will be recognized during that process. If a payment is made on a Time Pay account during a 
particular month those funds can be tracked from date of receipt and to the deposit. The Time Pay accounts that do not 
receive payments are tracked and go to another step. The defendant is issued a letter to pay or appear, or in some cases 
a warrant. If the defendant does not appear or pay on the notice, a warrant is issued and their driver's l icense is 
suspended in most cases . 

Vvhat may be at issue Is the total amount of the Time Pays outstanding,  which has nothing to do with the reconciliation or 
financial errors. The court works very di l igently (DL suspensions , warrants) to try to col lect Time Pays . No financial errors 
have been found by the auditors or by internal audits performed by the Park County Auditor. 

I , as Justice of the Peace, do review the month ly reconciliation and it is done in a timely manner. I a lso periodical ly review 
other reports such as the voided receipts and adjustments to Trme Pays such as commun ity service or credit for time 
served in Jail. The auditors did not ask for any of the reports that I looked at this past fiscal year, so they have no idea of 
what has been done to check for possib le issues with Justice Court. In the past I have run reports , printed them and put 
them in with the bank statements for the auditors' review. We still get the same finding , The auditor asked that I run the 
reports and print them for the next audit and then will not give this finding .  

I am now also on the Automation Committee that developed the guidel ines referenced in  the findings .  These guidelines 
were developed to set out and limit the responsibil ities of the IT department of the Supreme Court Admin istrators Office in 
providing aid to courts that consistently had problems reconci l ing thei r accounts and outl ines the Courts responsibi l ities for 
reconci l ing and keeping the "books" balanced. This Court is fully compliant with those responsibi l ities. The Automation 
committee along with the court administrator's office has developed and approved a time-pay aud itors report that will solve 
these problems for the new system Ful l Court Enterprise. The automation committee has had a letter explain ing the lack of 
the t ime pay report to be given to the commissioners. Olness is the only auditor that requests this . This letter is attached to 
this response. 

The auditors have been unable to recommend an economical and useful tool to do a monthly reconciliation of ,the time pay 
ag reement other than what is provided by the State Full Court Case Management System. This Court is compl iant with the 
accounting policies establ ished by the Supreme Court Administrators Office. 
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Proposed Completion Date: The Justice of the Peace will continue monthly reconciliation and review voided receipts and 
adjustments to Time Pay for community service or credit for time served in Jail. 

2019-004. FINAL BUDGET DOCUMENT TIMELY SUBMISSION 

Name of Contact person: Finance Director 

Corrective Action: Park County developed a new budget format to present information to the taxpayer more clearly and 
with additional text information. Unfortunately, the budget was late as a result of providing better information. The format 
is now set up properly, and no future late submissions Will occur. 

ProposeGI Cornpletion Date: Immediately 

2019-005. RESTRICTIONS ON DONATIONS 

Name of Contact person: Commissioners 

Corrective Action: Park County supported community wide studies performed by the Park County Community Foundation 
in an effort to improve the wellbeing of the community members, unknowingly not following MCA code. The County will 
discontinue the practice. 

Proposed Completion Date: Immediately 

2019-006. DISASTER GRANTS - PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (PRESIDENTIALLY DECLARED DISASTERS) 

Name of Contact person: Finance Director 

Corrective Action: While Park County created a hardcopy document WTth Project Worksheets following the rules of the cost 
principles in 2 CFR Part 200, subpart E, the general ledger did not correspond as it should have. The Accounting 
Department will work more closely with the auditors to make sure that future Disaster Grants, which can occur infrequently, 
are handled properly in the General Ledger. Procedures will be updated. 

Proposed Completion Date: .Immediately 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR 
FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT 

2019-007. ALL MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS 

Finding 2019-002 applies to these major programs. 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 

2019-008. DISASTER GRANTS- PUBLIC ASSISTANCE (PRESIDENTIALLY DECLARED DISASTERS) 

Finding 2019-006 applies to this major program. 
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